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Board’s report
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) hereby submits the report of the business and operations of the Company (“the Company” or 
“EdgeVerve”), along with the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

1.	 Results of our operations and state of affairs
(In ₹lakh, except per share data)

Particulars 2025 2024

Income from software products, platforms and services 4,08,972 3,56,938

Cost of sales 2,18,594 2,03,831

Gross profit 1,90,378 1,53,107

Operating expenses

Selling and marketing expenses 22,821 23,803

General and administration expenses 22,649 21,366

Total operating expenses 45,470 45,169

Operating profit 1,44,908 1,07,938

Other income, net 8,709 9,628

Profit before interest and tax 1,53,617 117,566

Finance cost 0 –

Profit before tax 1,53,617 1,17,566

Tax expense 44,126 34,078

Net profit after tax 1,09,491 83,488

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset (124) 86

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 0 –

Total other comprehensive income, net of taxes (124) 86

Total other comprehensive income 1,09,367 83,574

Earnings per share (at par value of ₹10 each)

Basic 8.35 6.36

Diluted 8.35 6.36
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Revenue
Our revenue from operations increased by 52,035 to ₹408,972 
lakh from ₹356,938 lakh in the previous year.

Profits
Our gross profit amounted to ₹190,378 lakh (46.6% of revenue) 
as against ₹153,107 lakh (42.9% of revenue) in the previous year. 
Sales and marketing costs were 5.6% of our revenue for the year 
ended March 31, 2025 as compared to 6.7% for the year ended 
March 31, 2024. General and administration expenses were 5.5% 
of our revenues for the year ended March 31, 2025 as compared 
to 6.0 % for the year ended March 31, 2024. The operating profit 
amounted to ₹144,908 lakh, as against ₹107,938 lakh (35.4% of 
revenue), in the previous year. The profit before tax was ₹153,617 
lakh, as against ₹117,566 lakh (37.6% of revenue) in the previous 
year. Net profit was ₹109,491 lakh as against ₹83,488 lakh (26.8% 
of revenue) in the previous year

Capital expenditure
This year, we incurred capital expenditure of ₹2,812 lakh. This 
comprises ₹2,806 lakh for investment in computer equipment, 
₹1 lakh in furniture and fixtures, and the balance of ₹5 lakh 

in infrastructure. In the previous year, we incurred capital 
expenditure of ₹1,778 lakh. This comprises ₹1,754 lakh for 
investment in computer equipment, ₹1 lakh in furniture and 
fixtures, and the balance of ₹23 lakh in infrastructure.

Liquidity
Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents 
and the cash flow that we generate from our operations. We 
maintain sufficient cash to meet our strategic and operational 
requirements. We understand that liquidity in the Balance Sheet 
has to balance between earning adequate returns and the need 
to cover financial and business requirements. Liquidity enables 
us to be agile and ready for meeting unforeseen business needs. 
We believe that our working capital is sufficient to meet our 
current requirements. As on March 31, 2025, we have liquid 
assets (includes cash and cash equivalents and investments) of 
₹1,38,183 lakh, as against ₹90,872 lakh at the previous year-
end. These funds comprise balances with banks in current and 
deposits accounts and investment in liquid mutual funds. The 
details of these investments are disclosed under the ‘non-current 
and current investments’ section in the financial statements 
in this Annual Report.

Dividend
The Company recommended / declared dividend as under :

Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2025

Dividend 
per share 

(in ₹)

Dividend 
payout (in 

₹lakh)

Dividend per 
share (in ₹)

Dividend 
payout (in 

₹lakh)

Interim dividend 2.50 32,796 – –

2nd Interim & Special dividend 2.75 36,075 – –

Final dividend 4.00 52,474 8.00(1) 104,947.00

Total dividend 9.25 1,21,345 8.00 104,947.00(3)

Dividend payout ratio(2) 145% 96%

1.	 Recommended by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 15, 2025. The payment is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing AGM to 
be held on July 21, 2025. The said dividend will be paid to Infosys Limited, the sole beneficial owner of the Company, as on the date of declaration, within the 
timeline prescribed under the Companies Act.

2.	 Payout ratio is computed as a percentage of free cash flow prepared under IFRS.

3.	 The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. Companies are required to pay / distribute dividend after deducting applicable withholding income 
taxes.

Deposits from public
The Company has not accepted any deposits, including from 
the public, and as such, no amount of principal or interest was 
outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.

Transfer to reserves
The Company does not propose to transfer any 
amount to general reserve.

Changes in the nature of business
The Company did not undergo any change in the nature of its 
business during fiscal 2025.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments
The Company has not made any loan directly or indirectly to any 
person or other body corporate nor guaranteed nor provided 
security in connection with the loan to any other body corporate 
during the year and the Company has not acquired, by way of 
subscription, purchase or otherwise, securities of any other body 
corporate, exceeding the limits prescribed in Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related 
parties
Particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into with related 
parties pursuant to Section 188(1) of the Act, in the prescribed 
Form AOC-2, is attached as Annexure 1 to the Board’s report.
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Material changes and commitments affecting financial 
position between the end of the financial year and 
date of report
There have been no material changes and commitments 
affecting the financial position of the Company between the end 
of the financial year and the date of the report.

Share capital and debentures
In 2015, the Company had purchased the Finacle and Edge 
Services business from its holding company Infosys Limited 
for the total consideration of ₹3,39,900 lakh. The Company 
settled the payment towards purchase consideration by way 
of issue of fully-paid-up equity shares of the Company and 
debentures. The Company issued 8,500 lakh equity shares of 
₹10 each amounting to ₹85,000 lakh and 2,549 lakh unsecured 
debentures of ₹100 each amounting to ₹2,54,900 lakh in full and 
final settlement to Infosys Limited. Necessary approval of the 
members was obtained.

With the issue of the above shares, the authorized share capital 
of the Company as on March 31, 2025 stood at ₹4,10,000 lakh and 
paid-up capital of the Company stood at ₹1,31,184 lakh. There has 
been no fresh issue of capital during the year.

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights, 
sweat equity shares or shares under employee stock option 
scheme. The Company has also not bought back any shares.

The Company has repaid outstanding debentures fully and has 
become a debt-free company since June 2021.

2.	 Products
EdgeVerve Systems Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Infosys, is at the forefront of digital innovation, enabling 
enterprises to unlock new possibilities in their transformation 
journeys. Through our industry-leading products and platforms, 
we help businesses create and realize new value, drive efficiency, 
amplify human potential, build innovative business models, 
and unlock new possibilities in their digital transformation 
journeys. EdgeVerve Systems has two business units: 
Finacle and Edge Suite.

As part of our commitment to continuous innovation, we 
introduced EdgeVerve AI Next, a unified AI platform within 
the Infosys Topaz suite. Designed to seamlessly scale Applied 
AI across enterprises, the platform harnesses the power of 
Generative AI and Agentic AI to bridge gaps across people, 
processes, data, and technology. Its flexible, cloud-agnostic 
architecture ensures smooth integration with existing enterprise 
systems, minimizing disruptions while enhancing agility 
and scalability. From global business services and enterprise 
transformation to supply chain optimization, EdgeVerve AI Next 
is a catalyst for profound business transformation.

Our leadership in AI and digital transformation has been 
consistently recognized by leading industry analysts. Notably, 
Everest Group’s 2024 PEAK Matrix Assessment for Digital 
Interaction Intelligence Products and IDC’s MarketScape for 
Worldwide Unstructured Intelligent Document Processing 
Software 2024 have positioned EdgeVerve as a leader. These 
accolades underscore our commitment to delivering world-class 
AI solutions that drive measurable impact. Across industries, 
our clients have leveraged Applied AI to enhance workforce 
potential, optimize processes, and create connected ecosystems.

EdgeVerve’s platforms have delivered measurable results 
clients across sectors including financial services, insurance, 
retail, consumer goods, life sciences, manufacturing, telecom, 
and utilities. Our customer-centric approach and expertise in 
enterprise AI ensure that businesses not only adapt to digital 
disruption but lead it.

At EdgeVerve, we are committed to delivering world-class 
platforms, fostering innovation, and enabling enterprises to scale 
with confidence. With a global presence and a focus on value-
driven digital transformation, we continue to be the trusted 
partner for businesses navigating the AI-powered future.

For more information on how EdgeVerve can support your 
business in scaling Applied AI, visit www.edgeverve.com.

Finacle is a global leader in digital banking solutions, powering 
emerging and established financial institutions with Next-Gen 
capabilities and proven performance, to inspire better banking. 
Our cloud-native solution suite and SaaS services help banks to 
engage, innovate, operate, and transform better, to scale digital 
transformation with confidence. 

Finacle’s solution suite includes Core Banking, Lending, 
Digital Engagement, Payments, Cash Management, Wealth 
Management, Treasury, Revenue Management, Analytics, 
AI, and Blockchain, to name a few. Finacle is built on a highly 
componentized, composable and API-first architecture, enabling 
banks to deploy and upgrade solutions flexibly as per their 
business priorities (on a private, public, or hybrid cloud). 

Our clients not only value our functionally rich solution suite 
and composable architecture, but also our commitment to 
delivering better transformation outcomes. This is reflected in 
our impeccable track record of driving digital transformation 
at speed and scale, for institutions of all shapes and sizes. 
This confidence in Finacle is also echoed by the analyst 
community, with Finacle being consistently rated as a ‘Leader’ 
in major analyst evaluation of repute, across solution suites 
and geographies. In critically important areas like ESG and 
sustainability as well, Finacle solutions are helping banks 
to create remarkable momentum. Today, banks in over 100 
countries rely on Finacle to serve over 1.3 billion customers, 
millions of businesses, and power over 25% of the global real-
time payments traffic. 

At Finacle, our purpose is Inspiring Better Banking, and 
we deliver this, by helping the bank’s customers to save, 
pay, borrow and invest better, every day. Please visit www.
finacle.com to know more.

3.	 Corporate governance
Our corporate governance practices reflect our value system 
encompassing our culture, policies, and relationships with our 
stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are key to our corporate 
governance practices to ensure that we gain and retain the trust 
of our stakeholders at all times.

Corporate governance is about maximizing shareholder 
value legally, ethically and sustainably. At EdgeVerve, the 
goal of corporate governance is to ensure fairness for every 
stakeholder. Sound corporate governance is critical to 
enhance and retain stakeholder trust. The Company always 
seeks to ensure that its performance is driven by integrity and 
values. The Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the 
widest sense of the term.

http://www.edgeverve.com
http://www.finacle.com
http://www.finacle.com
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At EdgeVerve, the Board ensures accountability, fairness 
and transparency in the Company’s relationship with the 
stakeholders such as clients, shareholders, employees, the 
Management, government and the community as a whole. The 
Company has complied with all norms of corporate governance 
applicable to unlisted public limited companies as envisaged 
under the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

Our Corporate Governance report for the fiscal 2025 forms part 
of this Annual Report

Number of meetings of the Board
The Board met five times during the financial year. The meeting 
details are given in the Corporate Governance report that forms 
part of this Annual Report.

The maximum interval between any two meetings did not 
exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Act.

Policy on directors’ nomination, appointment and 
remuneration
The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and 
non-executive directors on the Board and separate its functions 
of governance and management. As of March 31, 2025, the 
Board had Six members, consisting of an two executive directors 
and four non-executive directors. one of the non-executive 
director on the Board is women. Since the Company is a wholly-
owned subsidiary, there is no requirement to have independent 
directors on the Board. The composition of the Board is in 
conformity with applicable provisions of the Act.

The Board periodically evaluates composition and size to 
ensure proper balance of executive and non-executive directors 
and Board diversity.

The Company has adopted the Nomination and Remuneration 
policy framed by the holding company – Infosys Limited. The 
Board affirms that the remuneration paid to the directors is in 
conformity with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment 
and remuneration, including the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes of a director and other matters, 
as required under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Act, is 
available on our website, at https://www.edgeverve.com/about/ 
corporate-governance/.

Risk management
The Company follows the risk management framework adopted 
by the holding company, Infosys Limited. The same is available 
at https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/
documents/enterprise-risk-management-policy.pdf.

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework is developed 
by incorporating the best practices based on COSO and ISO 
31000 and then tailored to suit the Company’s unique business 
requirements. The ERM function enables the achievement of 
the Company’s strategic objectives by identifying, analyzing, 
assessing, mitigating, monitoring and governing any risk or 
potential threat to these objectives. While this is the key driver, 
the Company’s values, culture and commitment to stakeholders 
– employees, customers, investors, regulatory bodies, partners 
and the community around us – are the foundation for the 
ERM framework. The systematic and proactive identification 
of risks, and mitigation thereof, enables the organization to 

boost performance with effective and timely decision-making. 
Strategic decisions are taken after careful consideration of 
primary risks, secondary risks, consequential risks and residual 
risks. The ERM function also enables effective resource allocation 
through structured qualitative and quantitative risk impact 
assessment and prioritization based on the risk appetite. The 
ERM framework also enables the identification of underlying 
opportunities during risk assessment, which are then further 
evaluated and actionized by the business. The ERM framework 
encompasses all of the Company’s risks – strategy and strategy 
execution, operational, and legal and compliance risks. Any 
of these categories can have internal or external dimensions. 
Hence, appropriate risk indicators are used to identify these 
risks proactively. The Company takes cognizance of risks 
faced by key stakeholders and their cumulative impact while 
framing the risk responses.

Board evaluation
As required under Section 134(3) of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, a formal annual performance evaluation of individual 
directors, the Board as a whole and Committees thereof was 
conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by 
the Board. The process of evaluation has been explained in the 
Corporate Governance report section of this Annual Report.

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP)
Appointment(s)
Director 
Sumit Virmani (DIN: 10735886) was appointed as an additional 
director effective September 01, 2024.

KMP 
Divakar Bhaskar was appointed as the Company Secretary 
effective April 01, 2025.

Resignation(s)
Director
Martha Geiger King (DIN: 09166670) resigned as a director 
effective March 21, 2025. The Board placed on record its sincere 
appreciation for his contributions to the Company.

KMP 
Prakash Bharadwaj resigned as Company Secretary 
effective March 31, 2025.

Reappointment
Inderpreet Sawhney (DIN: 07925783) – Pursuant to Section 152 
(6) of the Act, Inderpreet Sawhney, who has served the longest 
on the Board, retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM. Inderpreet, 
being eligible, offers herself for reappointment.

Her reappointment as a director requires the approval of the 
members at the ensuring Annual General Meeting. The necessary 
resolution for obtaining the approval of members with regard to 
the reappointment of Inderpreet as a director liable to retire by 
rotation is being placed before the members.

https://www.edgeverve.com/about/ corporate-governance/
https://www.edgeverve.com/about/ corporate-governance/
https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/enterprise-risk-management-policy.pdf
https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/enterprise-risk-management-policy.pdf
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Committees of the Board
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the 
Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee (“CSR Committee”).

Further, the Company has constituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, voluntarily, to have a clear demarcation 
for the Board functions of governance and management.

The composition of the committee and related compliances and 
disclosures, as required under applicable provisions of the Act 
and Rules, are furnished in the Corporate Governance report.

Internal financial control and its adequacy
The Company has adopted Infosys group policies and procedures 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding 
of its assets, prevention and detection of fraud, error-reporting 
mechanisms, accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

Subsidiaries, associate companies, joint ventures
The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associate 
companies, or joint ventures.

Significant and material orders
There was no significant and material order passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and the Company’s operations in future.

Annual return
The annual return, as required under Section 134(3) of the Act, 
for fiscal 2025 is available at https://www.edgeverve.com/about/
corporate-governance/. 

Secretarial standards
The Company complies with all applicable secretarial standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical 
cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments, which are measured at fair values and the 
provisions of the Act. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment 
rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where 
a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in 
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The directors confirm that :

a.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed and there are no material departures;

b.	 They have selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c.	 They have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

d.	 They have prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis; and

e.	 They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars of employees
Following disclosures as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 form part of Annexure 2 to the Board’s report;

i.	 Statement containing the names of top 10 employees in terms 
of remuneration drawn.

ii.	 Details of employees posted in India throughout the 
fiscal 2025 and in receipt of a remuneration of ₹1.02 
crore or more per annum.

iii.	 Details of employees posted in India for part of the year and in 
receipt of ₹8.5 lakh or more a month.

The details of employees posted outside India and in receipt of a 
remuneration of ₹60 lakh or more per annum or ₹5 lakh or more 
a month will be made available on request.

4.	 Audit report and auditors

Audit reports
The auditors have issued an unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025. 
Their report for fiscal 2025 does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed 
with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

Parameshwar G. Hegde of Hegde & Hegde, Practicing Company 
Secretaries (FCS: 1325, CP No. 640), was appointed to conduct 
the secretarial audit of the Company for the fiscal 2025, as 
required under Section 204 of the Act and Rules thereunder. The 
secretarial audit report for fiscal 2025 forms part of the Annual 
Report as Annexure 3 to the Board’s report. The report does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Statutory auditors
M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI 
Firm Registration Number 117366W/W-100018) were reappointed 
as statutory auditors of the Company at the 8th AGM held 
on August 16, 2022, to hold office for a second term of five 
consecutive years from the conclusion of the 8th AGM till the 
conclusion of the 13th AGM to be held in the year 2027.

During the year, the statutory auditors have confirmed that they 
satisfy the independence criteria required under the Act, the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

https://www.edgeverve.com/about/corporate-governance/
https://www.edgeverve.com/about/corporate-governance/
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Secretarial auditor
As required under Section 204 of the Act and Rules thereunder, 
the Board appointed Parameshwar G. Hegde of Hegde & Hegde, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, as secretarial auditor of the 
Company for fiscal 2026.

Reporting of frauds by auditors
During fiscal 2025 neither the statutory auditors nor the 
secretarial auditor has reported any instance of fraud committed 
in the Company by its officers or employees.

Cost records and cost audit
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost 
audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) 
of the Act are not applicable for the business activities 
carried out by the Company.

5.	 Others

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company has constituted the CSR committee as per the 
requirements of the Companies Act and relevant rules made 
thereunder. The CSR amount is allocated for projects undertaken 
at group level through Infosys Foundation.

The Company has adopted the Infosys group CSR policy 
which is available at https://www.edgeverve.com/about/
corporate-governance/.

The annual report on CSR activities is appended as Annexure 4 
to the Board’s report. The details about the CSR committee forms 
part of Corporate Governance report.

Internal complaints committee
Infosys’ goal has always been to create an open and safe 
workplace for every employee to feel empowered, irrespective of 
gender, sexual preferences, and other factors, and contribute to 
the best of their abilities. Towards this, we established the Anti- 
Sexual Harassment Initiative (ASHI), which enables a positive and 
safe work environment for our employees.

Our ASHI practices are managed at group level within Infosys. 
Infosys has constituted an Internal Committee (IC) to consider 
and resolve all sexual harassment complaints reported 
by women. The IC has been constituted as per the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013, and the committee includes external 
members from NGOs or with relevant experience. Investigations 
are conducted and decisions made by the IC and a senior woman 
employee is the presiding officer over every case. Half of the 
total members of the IC are women. The role of the IC is not 
restricted to mere redressal of complaints but also encompasses 
prevention and prohibition of sexual harassment.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, there were no 
complaints raised under ASHI.

Establishment of vigil / whistleblower mechanism
The Company has adopted the Group Whistleblower Policy to 
ensure and promote ethics, transparency and accountability. 
Please refer to Corporate governance report for more details.

Conservation of energy
The operations of our Company are not energy-intensive. 
However, adequate measures have been taken to reduce 
energy consumption by using energy-efficient computers 
and equipment. The Company constantly evaluates new 
technologies and invests in them to make its infrastructure 
more energy-efficient.

During the year, there was no capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment.

Technology abosorption
Our microservices architecture investments
Finacle’s composable banking platform is built on the 
foundations of a 100% open architecture, embracing true 
microservices architectural thinking. Fueled by domain 
driven design constructs, the platform offers right grained 
microservices tailored to the business domains they support. We 
continue to strengthen our microservices design with adoption 
of contemporary patterns language - they enable delivery of 
efficient, precisely-tailored components perfectly suited to the 
unique requirements of each business domain. The patterns 
language investments include:

•	 Data strategy patterns for ensuring consistency and seamless 
querying across services - pivotal for system integrity, 
scalability and performance. 

•	 Integration, messaging and communication patterns to 
seamlessly connect services, manage communications, 
and drive integrations to leverage the full potential of 
microservices.

•	 Deployment automation and scalability patterns enable 
optimal microservices deployment, addressing resource 
utilization, isolation, cross-cutting concerns, population-scale 
performance, and operational complexities.

•	 Observability and performance management patterns 
deliver on optimal behavior, performance and resilience of 
the microservices. 

Strengthening our DevOps investments
Finacle has invested in building a DevOps platform tailor-made 
for banks. This has helped automate and streamline software 
development lifecycle, enable agile development methodologies 
and significantly reduce our implementation timelines. We 
have scaled the investments to transform platform’s security 
posture with a fully automated DevSecOps pipeline. Deepening 
the ‘shift left’ principles, we have embedded automated code 
quality and security scans into the development workflow, 
enabling early detection and remediation of vulnerabilities. Key 
automations include dynamic application security testing (DAST) 
and penetration testing (PT) with industry standard OWASP on 
running applications in DevOps/QA that provides continuous 
security assessments. Seamless integrations into defect tracking 
and source control, replaces manual, end-of-cycle security audits 
with continuous, automated security gating.

Our cloud absorption journey 
Over the years, Finacle has been on a progressive journey of 
evolution to a cloud-native product suite. This has been made 
possible through our continuous investments and R&D efforts 
in the space of cloud-native development. Today, Finacle 
solutions are fully cloud-native, cloud-neutral and powered by 

https://www.edgeverve.com/about/corporate-governance/
https://www.edgeverve.com/about/corporate-governance/
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-

Karmesh Vaswani
Chairman

Date: April 15, 2025
Place: London

DIN: 10193181

open, microservices-driven architecture, fully aligned to the 
CNCF principles and 12-factor app methodology. Our solutions 
and SaaS services work seamlessly with various global and 
regional cloud providers. The cloud-native construct is at the 
foundation of Finacle’s composable banking proposition, which 
allows banks to aggregate independent technical, domain, 
experience and engagement components to compose fit-for-
purpose banking solutions.

We are deepening our AI investments
Finacle continues to strengthen investments in AI technologies. 
Our AI platform is tailor-made for banks to train, optimize, 
build, deploy and monitor their predictive AI solutions with a 
high degree of transparency, interpretability and explainability. 
The platform democratizes ML lifecycle development and 
enables banks realize predictive AI value at scale. A suite of 
pre-built models, leveraging best-in-class ML techniques, 
is available across business lines and customer journeys - 
including origination, lending, deposits, wealth management, 
conversational banking, mobile teller, and personalized digital 
engagement and experiences. 

Realizing the massive potential Generative AI holds in banking, 
Finacle has embraced the disruptive technology to create a range 
of gen AI-powered assistants addressing unique enterprise as 
well as market centric use cases. Our gen AI investments are 
progressively evolving and is guided by the principle of “proving 
value to create value”. 

•	 Over the LTM, we have developed fit-for-purpose enterprise 
models from the ground up, leveraging distilled knowledge 
within specialized small language models (SLMs). The SLMs 
power Finacle Support AI Assistant and Finacle Knowledge AI 
Assistant - enabling gen AI-powered service ticket handling 
and knowledge management.

•	 We have also built gen AI powered Finacle UI AI Assistant - it 
empowers banks’ UI teams to convert Figma-style wireframes 
into pixel perfect screens, with built-in field-level validations, 
and seamless integrations with BFF APIs. 

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
Foreign exchange earned and used for the year ended March 31, 
2025 is as follows :

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars As at March 31,

2025 2024

Foreign exchange earnings 2,86,125 2,80,332

Foreign exchange outgo (including 
capital goods and imported software
 packages)

83,070 78,823

Other disclosures and affirmations
Pursuant to the provisions of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
the Company affirms that for the year ended on March 31, 2025:

a.	 There were no proceedings, either filed by the Company or 
against the Company, pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the National Company Law 
Tribunal or any other court.

b.	 There was no instance of one-time settlement with any bank 
or financial institution.

Acknowledgment
We thank our customers, vendors, investors and bankers for 
their continued support during the year. We place on record our 
sincere appreciation of the contribution made by employees 
at all levels. Our growth was made possible by their hard work, 
solidarity, cooperation and support.

We thank the governments of various countries where we have 
our operations. We also thank the State Governments and Central  
Government of India, particularly the Ministry of Labour and 
employment, the Ministry of Communication and Information 
Technology, the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, the Central Board of Direct Taxes, the Central 
Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs, GST authorities, the Reserve 
Bank of India, various departments under the state governments 
and union territories, the Software Technology Parks (STPs) 
/ Special Economic Zones (SEZs) and other government 
agencies for their support and look forward to their continued 
support in the future.
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Annexures to the Board’s Report

Annexure 1 – Particulars of contracts / arrangements made with related parties
[Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 – AOC-2]

This form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred 
to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended March 31, 2025, which were not 
at arm’s length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
The details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 are as follows :

Name of the related party 
relationship

Nature of relationship Duration of contract Salient terms Amount (In ₹lakh)

Infosys Limited Holding Company Valid from July 1, 2014 Purchase of shared 
services including facilities 
and personnel

5,030

Infosys Limited Holding Company Valid from July 1, 2014 Purchase of services 100,107

Infosys Limited Holding Company Valid from July 1, 2014 Sale of services 9,333

Infosys Limited Holding Company Valid from July 1, 2014 Sale of services including 
facilities and personnel

Total 114,470

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-

Karmesh Vaswani
Chairman

Date: April 16, 2024
Place: Bengaluru

DIN: 10193181
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Annexure 2 – Particulars of employees

Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year

Sl. 
no.

Employee name Full or 
part year

Designation Educational 
qualification

Age Experience 
(in years)

Date of 
joining

Date of 
leaving

Gross 
remuneration 

paid (₹)

Previous employment and 
designation

1 Sanat Rao Full Year Head – Finacle B.Com, 
PGDBA

60 34 Oct 03, 
2016

Apr 11, 
2024

 2,68,21,455  IBM, Application Innovation 
Consulting Leader

2 Sajit Vijayakumar Full Year Head – Finacle B.Com, 
AICWA, ACA

53 29 Nov 14, 
2019

– 2,39,41,579 ICICI Securities / ICICI Infotech, 
Assistant VP – Financial Control

3 Sateesh Seetharamiah Full Year Global Head – Edge 
Products

BE, MSc 56 30 Jul 01, 
2014

–  2,04,34,412  Infosys Limited, Senior Principal – 
Business Consulting

4 Venkatraman 
Ramachandran Kalambur

Full Year Head - Product 
Architecture

BE 54 30 Feb 24, 
2016

–  1,67,57,796 I-Exceed Technology Solutions 
private limited, Vp

5 Rajsri Rengan Full Year Head – Product 
Development

CAIIB, BSC 52 32 Dec 29,
2023

–  1,67,00,116  FIS Global Business Solutions India 
Pvt. Ltd, SVP - IT Division Executive

6 Arvind Rao Full Year Chief Technology Officer 
– Edge Products

BE, MS (Engg) 56 31 Nov 30, 
2022

–  1,57,98,010  ZYME (E2open) Bangalore, AVP 
Product Management

7 Prakash P. Full Year Chief Financial Officer B.Com, CA 55 26 Jan 18
2024

–  1,47,55,795  Infosys Limited, Principal - Corporate 
Taxation 

8 Shashidhar N. Full Year Global Product Head – 
Assist Edge

BE, PGD 49 26 Jul 01,
2014

–  1,47,49,879 Infosys Limited, Unit Planning and 
Assurance Manager

9 Rajashekara V. Maiya Full Year Head – Solution 
Consulting, Finacle

B.Com, 
M.Com, CA

52 29 Aug 01, 
2015

–  1,38,47,780 Infosys Limited, Principal – Product 
Strategy

10 Sudir Babu N. P. Full Year Service Offering Head BSC, PGD 58 37 Aug 01,
2015

–  1,38,26,489 Infosys Limited, Senior Delivery 
Manager
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Employees drawing a remuneration of ₹1.02 crore or above per annum and posted in India

Sl. 
no.

Employee name Designation Educational 
qualification

Age Experience 
(in years)

Date of 
joining

Gross 
remuneration 

paid (₹)

Previous employment and 
designation

1 Prasad C. Product Business Manager BE 52 30 Aug 01,
2015

 1,29,68,354 Infosys Limited, Lead Product Manager

2 Hemant Govind Kalgaonkar Senior Delivery Manager BE 51 29 Aug 01,
2015

 1,08,50,161 Infosys limited, delivery manager

3 Ajit Aravind Sawant Associate Regional Manager - Finacle 
Sales

BSC, MMS 53 29 Sep 08,
2015

 1,26,38,200 Infosys limited, senior business 
development manager

4 Sagar Sarma Senior Director and Head - Product 
Development

BE, PGDM 56 24 Mar 27,
2017

 1,28,29,566 Mcafee software solutions private 
limited, director of engineering

5 Swaminathan Natarajan Global Product Head – XtractEdge BE 49 27 Mar 09,
2022

 1,16,46,789 Infosys Limited, Principal Product 
Architect

6 Nandan Kolar Director - Sales BE 59 24 Oct 19,
2022

 1,30,29,354 Satyam Software/Tech Mahindra, Avp

7 Puneet Chhahira Head - Product Management BE, PGD 44 20 Aug 11
2015

 1,02,58,637  Infosys Limited, Principal - Marketing 
Manager 

8 Siva Subramaniam GV Senior Principal - Product Management B. Com 49 29 Jan 16
2019

 1,08,91,931 Suntech Business Solutions, Senior Vice 
President

9 Naveen Malhotra Senior Director and Head - Marketing BE 54 32 Oct 28
2022

 1,13,90,981 Mahindra And Mahindra, Sr.general 
Manager

10 Binooj Purayath Partner - Experience Design BE, MS 49 27 Nov 09
2023

 1,03,92,161 Versant Corporation, Software 
Development Engineer

11 Krishnaswamy Subbarao Senior Industry Principal BE 55 30 Apr 23
2020

 1,04,11,962 Pantic Works Private Limited, Co-
Founder &Amp; Partner
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Employed for part of the year with an average salary above ₹8.5 lacs per month and posted in India

Sl. 
no.

Employee name Designation Educational 
qualification

Age Experience 
(in years)

Date of joining Date of leaving Gross remuneration paid (₹)

1 Chanakya Sehgal Head HR - Edge Products BE 51 27 Jul 01, 2014 Dec 31, 2024  84,99,784 

2 Sunila Jaikumar Head HR - Finacle BSC, MDPMI 50 27 Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2024  86,21,930 

3 Mahesh R. Senior Delivery Manager PGD, MSC 60 40 Aug 01, 2015 Jun 28, 2024  25,95,348 

4 Venkatramana Gosavi Global Head Sales - Finacle BE, MBA 60 35 Aug 01, 2015 Apr 30, 2024  97,32,722 

5 Prashanth Gorur Ranganath Director - Business Excellence BE 51 25 Oct 09, 2023 Apr 25, 2024  11,31,924 

Employees drawing a remuneration of ₹60 lacs or above per annum and posted outside India

Sl. 
no.

Employee name Designation Educational 
qualification

Age Experience 
(in years)

Date of joining Gross remuneration 
paid (₹)

Previous employment and 
designation

1 Ritesh Ramesh Ageton Senior Technical Manager-EV BE 38 16 Aug 01, 2015  1,03,57,796 Infosys limited, technology 
analyst

2 Ramesh Kandhasamy Technical Test Lead BSc 34 14 Jan 06, 2016  73,41,801 Infosys limited, test engineer

3 Vishnu Choudhary  Technology Lead - EV B.Tech 32 10 Nov 02, 2016  70,95,952 Huawei technologies india pvt 
ltd, software engineer

Employed for part of the year with an average salary above ₹5 lacs per month and posted outside India

Sl. 
no.

Employee name Designation Educational 
qualification

Age Experience 
(in years)

Date of joining Date of leaving Gross remuneration 
paid (₹)

Previous employment and 
designation

1 Sanat Rao Head - Finacle B.Com, PGDBA 59 33 Oct 03, 2016 Apr 11, 2024  2,68,21,455 Ibm, application innovation 
consulting leader

Notes:

1.	 The employees mentioned in the aforesaid exhibit have / had permanent employment contracts with the Company.

2.	 The employees are neither relatives of any directors of the Company, nor hold 2% or more of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as per Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

3.	 The above tables does not include the details of remuneration drawn by the top 10 employees.
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Annexure 3 – Secretarial audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025

Form No. MR-3 
(Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To, 
The Members, 
Edgeverve Systems Limited, 
Plot No. 44, Electronics City, Hosur Main Road 
Bengaluru-560100 
Karnataka, India

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by EDGEVERVE SYSTEMS LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 
of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2025 and made available to me, according to the provisions of:

I.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

II.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment 
and Overseas Direct Investment, if any,(there was no event / action during the year pursuant to this Act,);

III.	The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (there was no event / action during the year 
pursuant to this Act,) and

IV.	Other laws applicable specifically to the Company, namely:

a)	The Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder;

b)	The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made thereunder;

c)	Software Technology Parks of India rules and regulations;

d)	The Patents Act, 1970;

e)	The Trade Marks Act, 1999.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

I report that, during the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations and 
Standards mentioned above.
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I further report that, being an unlisted Company, during the audit period, the following Acts and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder were not applicable to the Company:

i.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations and Guidelines made / issued thereunder.

I further report that,  the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of 
financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory 
financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated professionals.

I further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors and Non- 
Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board meetings and agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no 
dissenting views have been recorded.

I further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also on the review of the 
compliance certificates / reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, there are adequate systems 
and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I report further that, during the audit period, there were no specific events / actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 15, 2025

P.G. Hegde
Hegde & Hegde 

Company Secretaries
FCS: 1325 / C.P.No: 640

UDIN: F001325G000061671

This report is to be read with Annexure A which forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A
To, 
The Members 
Edgeverve Systems Limited 
Bengaluru

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 I  have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4.	 Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 

happening of events etc.
5.	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.
6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 15, 2025

P.G.Hegde
Hegde & Hegde 

Company Secretaries
FCS: 1325 / C.P.No: 640

UDIN:  F001325F000061671
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Annexure 4 – Annual report on CSR activities
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended.]

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company
Over the years, we have been focusing on sustainable business practices encompassing economic, environmental and social imperatives 
that not only cover business, but also the communities around us. Our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) encompasses holistic 
community development and institution-building, while shaping and sharing solutions that serve the development of businesses and 
communities. The CSR Policy aims to contribute to the sustainable development of society and the environment, and to make our planet 
more livable for future generations. CSR activities, among others, focus on Education, Malnutrition and Health, Empowerment of Women, 
Environmental Sustainability, Gender Equality, Hunger, Poverty, Rural Development, National Heritage, Art and Culture, and Disaster 
Management. We contribute to serve the development of people by shaping their future with meaningful opportunities, thereby 
accelerating the sustainable development of society while preserving the environment, and making our planet a better place today and 
for future generations.

Focus areas:
•	 Hunger, Poverty, Malnutrition and Health
•	 Education
•	 Gender Equality and Empowerment of Women
•	 Environmental Sustainability
•	 Rural Development Projects 
•	 National Heritage, Art and Culture
•	 Disaster Management

CSR activities
CSR initiatives are undertaken directly through Infosys Foundation (“the Foundation”). The Foundation was established in 1996 with a 
vision to boosting CSR initiatives. This was long before the Companies Act, 2013 mandated CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee held during the year

Number of meetings of CSR Committee 
attended during the year

1 Inderpreet Sawhney Chairperson   1 1  

2 Dennis Gada Member  1 1

3 Sateesh Seetharamiah Member 1 1

4 Karmesh Vaswani Member 1 1

5 Sumit Virmani (1) Member NA NA

(1)	 Sumit Virmani was appointed as a member effective October 15, 2024.

3.	 Web link(s) for composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board
•	 The composition of the CSR Committee is available on our website, at https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/

Composition-of-Committees.pdf.
•	 The Committee, with the approval of the Board, has adopted the CSR Policy as required under Section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. The CSR Policy is available on our website, at https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/
corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf. 

•	 The Board, based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee, at its meeting held on April 15, 2025, has approved the annual 
action plan / projects for fiscal 2026, the details of which are available on our website, at https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//
uploads/2025/04/EdgeVerve-CSR-Annual-2025-26.pdf.

https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/Composition-of-Committees.pdf
https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/Composition-of-Committees.pdf
https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf
https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf
https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/EdgeVerve-CSR-Annual-2025-26.pdf
https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/EdgeVerve-CSR-Annual-2025-26.pdf
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4.	 Executive summary and web link(s) of Impact Assessment reports 
The Company has been implementing various CSR projects for holistic community development and institution building to serve the 
enrichment and evolution of businesses and communities. For fiscal 2025, the Company has engaged an external agency to provide 
support and assistance for an independent review and impact assessment.

Methodology
To assess the impact of the projects, a mixed-method approach was employed, utilizing either quantitative or qualitative research tools, 
or both, as appropriate, for primary data collection. Utilizing these tools, the research team conducted interactions, both virtually 
and / or on-site, with project beneficiaries and other relevant stakeholders. After collecting and analyzing the data, the key insights and 
findings were compiled into a comprehensive report for the Management’s review. This assessment was guided by the Inclusiveness, 
Relevance, Effectiveness, Convergence, and Sustainability (IRECS) Framework, which provided overall feedback on the effectiveness of 
the implementation and its efficiency in achieving the desired project outcomes and impact relative to the inputs.

Summary
Projects undertaken for impact assessment in the current year cover the broad areas of education and art & culture as described below.

Theme 1: Education 
In Education theme, the CSR project under assessment, has enhanced educational outcomes by boosting teachers’ confidence and skills, 
leading to increased student enthusiasm and comprehension, and transforming classrooms into engaging learning environments.

Overview of CSR Project under Assessment Project Location Implementation Mechanism
Training of Government Schools’ Science and Math teachers Andhra Pradesh and 

Odisha 
Agastya International Foundation 
(Implementation Partner)

Theme 2: Healthcare
Under Healthcare theme, the CSR project under assessment, has improved the health and well-being of women by providing free 
dialysis, increasing access, reducing financial burdens, and enhancing patient safety and privacy.

Overview of CSR Project under Assessment Project Location Implementation Mechanism
Free Dialysis Care for Women Patients Bengaluru, Karnataka Bangalore Kidney Foundation 

(Implementation Partner)

Theme 3: Environment Sustainability
Under Environment Sustainability theme, the CSR project under assessment, has improved water management and cultural preservation 
by restoring historic water systems, enhancing groundwater recharge, and fostering community engagement through cultural events.

Overview of CSR Project under Assessment Project Location Implementation Mechanism
Restoration of historic stepwells & traditional water systems at 
Rashtrapati Nilayam, Hyderabad 

Hyderabad, Telangana SAHE Foundation 
(Implementation Partner)

Theme 4: Women Empowerment
Under Women Empowerment theme, the CSR project under assessment, has trained women in essential IT skills, resulting in placements 
and significantly reducing gender disparity in employment.

Overview of CSR Project under Assessment Project Location Implementation Mechanism
Women in Technology Programme 13 Cities in 10 States of India Nirmaan Organisation 

(Implementation Partner)

Detailed impact assessment reports can be accessed at https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/EV-Impact-
Assessment-Report-2024-25.pdf.

https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/EV-Impact-Assessment-Report-2024-25.pdf
https://www.edgeverve.com/wp-content//uploads/2025/04/EV-Impact-Assessment-Report-2024-25.pdf
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5. Average net profit of the Company
(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: ₹1,163 crore

(b)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: ₹23.25 crore 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the  previous financial years:  N.A.

(d)  Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. N.A.

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: ₹23.25 crore

6. Amount spent on CSR projects
(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): ₹23.35 crore

(b)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: ₹23.35 crore

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year

Total Amount Spent for the 
Financial Year (in ₹crore) 

Amount Unspent (in ₹)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per sub-Section (6) 

of Section 135 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-Section (5) 

of Section 135

Amount (in ₹crore) Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of transfer. 

21.08 Nil N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

(f)	Excess amount for set-off, if any: 

Sl. no.  Particular  Amount 
(in ₹crore)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 23.25

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 23.35

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 0.10

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any  Nil

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]  Nil
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7.	 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: 

Sl. 
no.

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under sub-
section (6) of section 
135 (in ₹ crore) 

Balance Amount in 
Unspent CSR Account 
under sub-section (6) 
of section 135 (in ₹ 
crore

Amount 
Spent in the 
Financial 
Year (in Rs 
crore) 

Amount transferred to a 
Fund as specified under 

Schedule VII as per second 
proviso to sub-section (5) of 

section 135, if any 

Amount 
remaining to be 
spent in 
succeeding 
Financial Years  
(in Rs crore) 

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount 
(in Rs crore) 

Date of 
Transfer

N.A

8.	 Details of capital assets created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent 
during the financial year:  

Sl. 
No.

Short particulars of the 
property or asset(s)
[including complete 
address and location of the 
property]

Pincode of the 
property or asset(s)

Date of 
creation

Amount of CSR 
amount spent

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 
the registered owner

 Registration 
CSR

Name Registered 
address

1 Providing medical 
equipment Address: Vani 
Vilas Hospital,K.R Road, Fort, 
Bangalore 560002

560002 Mar 07, 2025 0.32 NA Vani Vilas 
Hospital

K.R Road, 
Fort, 
Bangalore 
560002

9.	 Reasons for not spending two percent of the average net profit as per sub-section (5) of Section 135.
Not applicable

sd/- sd/-

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 15, 2025

Inderpreet Sawhney
Chairperson CSR Committee

Sateesh Seetharamiah
Whole-time Director

DIN: 07925783 DIN: 09328904
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Corporate governance report
The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and oversees how the Management serves and 
protects the long-term interests of all our stakeholders. We believe that an active, well-informed Board is necessary to ensure the highest 
standards of corporate governance. It is well-recognized that an effective Board is a prerequisite for strong and effective corporate 
governance. Our Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of the term.

The Company’s governance framework rests on our core value system of C-LIFE – Client value, Leadership by example, Integrity and 
transparency, Fairness and Excellence

A.	 Board composition
Size and composition of the Board
The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and non-executive directors and separate its functions of governance 
and management. As of March 31, 2025, the Board had six members, consisting of two executive director and four non-executive 
directors. One of the non-executive director on the Board is women. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its 
composition and size.

We have adopted the good corporate governance guidelines in line with governance policies of the holding company to the extent 
applicable and to help fulfil our corporate responsibility towards stakeholders. These guidelines ensure that the Board will have the 
necessary authority and processes to review and evaluate our operations when required. Further, these guidelines allow the Board to 
make decisions that are independent of the Management.

The Company has complied with all norms of corporate governance applicable to the unlisted public company as envisaged under the 
Act and the Rules made thereunder including applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The composition of the Board as on March 31, 2025 is as follows :

Name of director, 
designation, age and 
DIN

Date of 
appointment  

Area of expertise Highest qualification held Directorship held in all companies 
around the world

Karmesh Vaswani, 
Chairman and Non-
executive Director
Age: 53
DIN: 10193181

July 17, 2023 IT Services - Retail, 
Consumer & Logistics 
industry

Bachelor’s degree in Engineering •	 Infosys BPM Ltd
•	 Infosys Technologies (China) Co Ltd
•	 Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) 

Co Ltd
•	 Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB
•	 Infosys Consulting Holding AG
•	 Infosys Middle East FZ LLC
•	 Infosys Fluido Ireland Ltd
•	 Infosys Fluido UK Ltd
•	 Guide Vision SRO
•	 Infosys Saudi Arabia Company 

Limited

Sateesh 
Seetharamiah
Whole-time Director, 
Age: 56 years,
DIN: 09328904

September 27, 
2021

Supply Chain, 
Management 
Consulting, Artificial 
Intelligence, IoT and 
Automation

Master’s degree in Biomedicine from 
New Jersey Institute of Technology, 
research credentials from Robert 
Wood Johnson Medical School
(New Jersey) and a bachelor in 
Instrumentation Technology from 
University of Mysore

Nil

Inderpreet Sawhney
Non-executive Director, 
Age: 60 years, 
DIN: 07925783

September 1, 
2017

Legal, regulatory and 
compliance

LLB from Delhi University and LLM 
from Queen’s University, Kingston, 
Canada

•	 Infosys BPM Limited 
•	 Infosys Americas Inc
•	 Infosys Consulting Holding AG
•	 Infosys Nova Holdings LLC
•	 Hillenbrand Inc
•	 USIBC
•	 Association of Corporate Counsel
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Name of director, 
designation, age and 
DIN

Date of 
appointment  

Area of expertise Highest qualification held Directorship held in all companies 
around the world

Dennis Gada
Non-executive Director,
Age: 45 years
DIN: 09310292

September 13, 
2021

Financial Services, 
Business Consulting 
and Technology

Chartered Accountant, Bachelor of 
Commerce

Infosys Compaz Pte. Ltd

Sajit Vijayakumar
Whole-time Director,
Age: 53
DIN: 10469386

April 16, 2024 International 
banking and 
technology

Chartered Accountant (Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India) 
Cost Accountant (Institute of Cost and 
Works Accountants of India)

Nil

Sumit Virmani
Director,
Age: 50 years
DIN: 10735886

September 1, 
2024

Global Chief 
Marketing Officer, 
Diversity, Global 
business, Leadership, 
Sales & marketing, 
Sustainability & ESG, 
Risk management

Master of Business Administration and 
Bachelor of Commerce

Nil

Note - None of the Directors have Board membership across any Indian listed companies.

Board meetings
During the year, five Board meetings were held in accordance with Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013. The gap between two Board 
meetings did not exceed 120 days.

Attendance of directors during fiscal 2024

Board meetings

AGM on
July 25, 2024

Apr 16,
2024

Jul 16,
2024

Oct 15,
2024

Jan 13,
2025

Mar 26,
2025

Held during 
tenure

% of 
attendance

Name of directors
1 2 3 4 5

Karmesh Vaswani

Sateesh Seetharamiah

Inderpreet Sawhney

Martha King(1)

Dennis Gada

Sajit Vijayakumar

Sumit Virmani(2)

% Attendance

L

L

L

5 5 100

100

100

100

100

80

100%83%

AttendedPresent Leave of absence Attended through video call

100% 85% 100% 100%

5

5

5

5

5

5

4

5

3 3

4

4

Board attendance

100NA NA

NA

NA

(1)	 Resigned effective March 21, 2025
(2)	 Appointed effective September 1, 2024
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Board committees
The Board has constituted the following two committees –

1.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee
As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
relevant rules, the Board has constituted the CSR Committee.

Composition and attendance details

Designation Meeting 

April 16, 2024

Name

Sateesh Seetharamiah

Karmesh Vaswani

Sumit Virmani (1)

Inderpreet Sawhney Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

MemberDennis Gada

CSR Committee

Present

NA

Attended through video call

(1)	 Appointed as a member effective September 01, 2024

CSR Policy and annual report on CSR activities
The Company has adopted the Group CSR Policy in compliance 
with the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules made 
thereunder. The annual report on CSR activities, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013, for the year ended March 31, 
2025, is attached as Annexure 4 to the Board’s report.

2.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(NRC)
On July 22, 2022, the Board constituted the NRC voluntarily 
to have a clear demarcation for the Board functions of 
governance and management. The Committee comprises only 
non-executive directors.

Composition and attendance details

Designation Meeting 

Apr 16,
2024

Name

Inderpreet Sawhney

Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

Member

Dennis Gada

Karmesh Vaswani

Sumit Virmani(1)

NRC

Present

Martha King

Attended through video call

NA

Mar 26,
2025

NA

(1)	 Appointed as a member effective September 01, 2024

Director retiring by rotation for reappointment
In accordance with the Act read with relevant rules, two-third 
of directors of a public company are liable to retire by rotation 
and one-third are liable to retire at every general meeting. In 
this regard, Inderpreet Sawhney, who has served the longest 
on the Board retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM. Inderpreet 
Sawhney, being eligible, offers herself for reappointment. 
Her reappointment is subject to the approval of the members 
at the ensuing AGM. The necessary resolution for obtaining 
the approval of members with regard to reappointment of 
Inderpreet Sawhney as a Director liable to retire by rotation 
is being placed before the members. The above director 
satisfies the requirement of directors’ appointment / 
reappointment criteria.

Board evaluation
During fiscal 2025, the NRC conducted a formal annual 
performance evaluation of individual directors, the Board as a 
whole and Committees thereof, based on the predefined criteria 
and framework adopted by the Board.

The performance evaluation of all the directors was 
conducted through a peer evaluation method excluding the 
director being evaluated.

A questionnaire was circulated based on Board-defined criteria 
and the assessments were received from each director, and the 
evaluation outcome was placed before the Board.

Scheduling and selection of agenda items for the 
Board meetings
The dates of the subsequent Board meetings are decided a 
month in advance and published to the directors to enable them 
to block their calendar. The non-executive Chairperson of the 
Board and the Company Secretary draft the agenda for each 
meeting, along with explanatory notes, in consultation with CFO, 
and distribute these in advance to the directors.

Every Board member can suggest the inclusion of additional 
items in the agenda.

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly 
financial statements and other items on the agenda. Additional 
meetings are held when necessary. Directors are expected to 
attend all Board meetings in a year. However, with the Board 
being represented by directors from various parts of the world, 
it may not be possible for all of them to be physically present 
at all the meetings. Hence, the Company provides video / 
teleconferencing facilities to enable their participation. 
The Committees of the Board usually meet before the Board 
meeting, or whenever the need arises for transacting a business.

The Board members are expected to rigorously prepare 
for, attend and participate in all Board and applicable 
committee meetings. Each member is expected to ensure 
that their commitments do not materially interfere with their 
responsibilities at EdgeVerve.

The quarterly Board and committee meetings of the Company 
will be held in line with its holding company, Infosys Limited, for 
the purpose of consolidation.
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Remuneration to the directors
During fiscal 2025, remuneration was paid to the whole- 
time directors. Non-executive directors are not paid any 
remuneration, fees or commission.

The remuneration paid to the directors is in accordance 
with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and within 
the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, as 
approved by the members.

Secretarial audit
The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Parameshwar 
G. Hegde of Hegde & Hegde, Practicing Company Secretary, 
to conduct the secretarial audit of procedures, records and 
documents of the Company with regard to governance-related 
compliances. The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the 
Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The report of the Secretarial Auditor forms 

part of the Board’s report as Annexure 3 The report does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

The Board of Directors has appointed Parameshwar G. Hegde as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for fiscal 2026.

Whistleblower Policy
The Company has adopted the Group Whistleblower Policy to 
ensure and promote ethics, transparency and accountability. 
The whistleblower mechanism allows employees to report 
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, 
or violation of our Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics. It 
also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization 
of employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct 
access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee of the parent 
company, Infosys Limited, in exceptional cases. The policy has 
been posted on the website of the Company at https://www.
infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/
whistleblower-policy.pdf.

General body meetings
The details of the last three Annual and / or Extraordinary General Meetings are as follows:

Type of general meeting Date and time Venue Special resolutions passed

Annual General Meeting July 25, 2024 at 6.00 p.m. Through video conference Nil

Annual General Meeting May 15, 2023 at 4.00 p.m. Through video conference Nil

Annual General Meeting August 16, 2022 at 5.00 p.m. Through video conference Nil

https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/whistleblower-policy.pdf
https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/whistleblower-policy.pdf
https://www.infosys.com/investors/corporate-governance/documents/whistleblower-policy.pdf
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of Edgeverve Systems Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EDGEVERVE SYSTEMS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of 
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and  application  of  appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
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when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that 
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 		
		  necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 		
		  examination of those books. 

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity 	
		  and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the 		
		  Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 		
		  Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the 	
		  operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified 		
		  opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 		
		  financial statements. 

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 		
		  197(16) of the Act, as amended:

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 	
		  Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 		
		  (Audit and  Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 			 
		  to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. Refer Note 2.20 to 	
	 the financial statements. 

ii.	 The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards for material foreseeable losses. 		
	 Refer Note 2.14 to the financial statements. The Company does not have any long-term derivative contracts. 

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.	 (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually 	
	 or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 		
	 sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 	
	 the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 		
	 or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 	
	 or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

	 (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually 	
	 or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 		
	 Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 		
	 indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 		
	 (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

	 (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 	
	 to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) 	
	 and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.	 As stated in Note 2.10.1 to the financial statements 

	 (a)	 The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with 		
		  Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

	 (b)	 The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval 			
		  of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Such dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of 		
		  the Act, as applicable.

vi.	 Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software systems for maintaining 		
	 its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 		
	 and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during 		
	 the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has 		
	 been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 		
	 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Llp
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Amit Ved
Partner

(Membership No.120600)

UDIN:25120600BMNTMJ5521 

Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 15, 2025
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Annexure “A” To The Independent Auditor’s Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of 
Edgeverve Systems Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financials Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of EDGEVERVE SYSTEMS LIMITED (“the Company”) 
as at March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with 
reference to financials statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financials statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Llp
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Amit Ved
Partner

(Membership No.120600)

UDIN:25120600BMNTMJ5521

Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 15, 2025
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of 
Edgeverve Systems Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account and records 
examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.	 In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

	 (a) 	 (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative   details and situation of 		
		  property, plant and equipment. 

		  (B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	 The Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment so to cover all the assets once every 		
		  three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 		
		  Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were 		
		  physically 	verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, 		
		  no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

	 (d)	 The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the year.

	 (e)	 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any 	
		  benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii.	 (a)	 The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under Clause (ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the Company has not 			 
		  been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the 	
		  Order is not applicable.

iii.	 The Company has made investments in, and granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

	 (a)	 The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security to any 	
		  other entity during the year, and hence reporting under paragraph (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans during the year are, prima facie, not 	
		  prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

	 (c)	 In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 		
		  stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as per stipulation. 

	 (d)	 In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

	 (e)	 No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted 	
		  to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. 

	 (f)	 The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying 	
		  any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

iv.	 According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided 		
	 guarantees or securities that are covered under the provisions of sections 185 or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence 		
	 reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the 	
	 Order is not applicable.

vi.	 The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the 		
	 Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not 		
	 applicable to the Company.

vii.	 In respect of statutory dues: 

	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service 	
		  Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value 		
		  Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

		  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 	
		  Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in 	
		  arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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	 (b)	 Details of Statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of 		
		  dispute are given below:

Name of the statute Nature of Dues Forum where 
the dispute is pending 

Period to 
which the amount relates

Amount not  
deposited  
(in lakhs

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty Customs Excise 
and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

FY 2015-16, 
FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18

4,054

Maharashtra Value added Tax VAT/CST Joint 
Commissioner (Appeals)

FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 24

Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 Goods and Services Tax High Court of Karnataka FY 2017-18 11

Joint 
Commissioner (Appeals)

FY 2017-18 to FY 2021-22 326

The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax National Faceless 
Assessment Centre, Delhi

FY 22-23 1,170

Income 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

FY 2015-16, 
FY 2017-18 to FY 2020-21

4,465

Finance Act, 2016 Equalisation Levy Assessing Officer FY 2020-21 0*

* Less than ₹1 lakh

FY= Financial Year

viii.	 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 		
	 the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix.	 (a)	 The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting under clause (ix)(a) of the 		
		  Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 			 
		  government authority.

	 (c)	 The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the 		
		  year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (d)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not 	
		  been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

	 (e)	 The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or Joint venture during the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)	
		  (e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x.	 (a)	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during 	
		  the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 		
		  debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.	 (a)	 To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or 		
		  reported during the year.	

	 (b)	 To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 		
		  ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year 	
		  and upto the date of this report.

	 (c)	 We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date 	
		  of this report) while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii.	 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 for all transactions with the related 		
	 parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 	
	 accounting standards. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary and hence the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 		
	 Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
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xiv.	 (a)	 In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

	 (b)	 We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in 	
		  determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv.	 In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons 		
	 connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, 	
		  reporting under Clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined under Core Investment Companies (Reserve 	
		  Bank) Directions) and accordingly reporting under Clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 			 
	 preceding financial year.

xviii.	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 	
	 other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 	
	 based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 		
	 to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting 	
	 its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 		
	 date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting 	
	 is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 	
	 due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.	 The company has fully spent the required amount toward Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR 		
	 amount for the year requiring a transfer of a Fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act or special account in compliance 	
	 with the provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under clause (xx) of the Order in not 		
	 applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Llp
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Amit Ved
Partner

(Membership No.120600)

UDIN:25120600BMNTMJ5521

Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 15, 2025
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Balance Sheet
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Note 
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 2.1 5,470 5,213 

Capital work-in-progress 2.1a 877  538 

Other intangible assets 2.2 65  86 

Financial assets

Loans 2.4 2 1 

Other financial assets 2.5 2,701 2,769 

Deferred tax assets (net) 2.15  1,141 1,340 

Income tax assets 2.15 14,066 14,704 

Other non-current assets 2.8 13,957 8,426 

Total non-current assets 38,279 33,077 

Current assets

Financial assets

Investments 2.3 61,595 49,721 

Trade receivables 2.6 23,898  16,536 

Cash and cash equivalents 2.7 76,588 41,151 

Loans 2.4 217 248 

Other financial assets 2.5 43,161 43,394 

Other current assets 2.8 26,797 22,236 

Total current assets  2,32,256 1,73,286 

Total assets 2,70,535 2,06,363 

Equity and liabilities

Equity 

Equity share capital 2.10 1,31,184 1,31,184 

Other equity 47,078 (9,815)

Total equity 1,78,262 1,21,369 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities 2.11  2  – 

Total non-current liabilities 2  – 

Current liabilities
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Particulars Note 
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 2.12

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  –  475 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 1,056 3,533 

Other financial liabilities 2.11  37,880 32,286 

Other current liabilities 2.13  25,572 24,291 

Provisions 2.14  9 78 

Income tax liabilities 2.15  27,754  24,331 

Total current liabilities  92,271 84,994 

Total equity and liabilities 2,70,535 2,06,363 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of EdgeVerve Systems Limited

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W/ W-100018

Amit Ved
Partner

Membership No. 120600

Karmesh Vaswani
Chairman

DIN: 10193181

 Sajit Vijaykumar
 Whole-time Director

 DIN: 10469386

Sateesh Seetharamiah
Whole-time Director

DIN: 09328904

Bengaluru

April 15, 2025

P. Prakash
Chief Financial Officer

Divakar B.
Company Secretary

Membership No. A64015
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Statement of Profit and Loss
(In ₹lakh, except equity share and per equity share data)

Particulars Note 
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Revenue from operations 2.16  4,08,972  3,56,938 

Other income, net 2.17  8,709  9,628 

Total income  4,17,681  3,66,566 

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses 2.18  77,662  75,252 

Cost of technical sub-contractors  1,04,209  1,05,724 

Travel expenses 2.18  7,395  8,209 

Cost of software packages and others 2.18  41,263  25,927 

Consultancy and professional charges  12,440  10,761 

Depreciation and amortization expense 2.1  2,577  3,038 

Other expenses 2.18  18,518  20,089 

Total expenses  2,64,064  2,49,000 

Profit before tax  1,53,617  1,17,566 

Tax expense

Current tax 2.15  43,928  34,545 

Deferred tax 2.15  198  (467)

Profit for the year  1,09,491  83,488 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset, net of tax  (124)  86 

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  –  – 

Total other comprehensive income/ (loss), net of tax  (124)  86 

Total comprehensive income for the year  1,09,367  83,574 

Earnings per equity share 

Equity shares of par value of ₹10 each

Basic and diluted (₹) 8.35  6.36 

Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share

Basic and diluted 131,18,40,000 131,18,40,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of EdgeVerve Systems Limited

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W/ W-100018

Amit Ved
Partner

Membership No. 120600

Karmesh Vaswani
Chairman

DIN: 10193181

 Sajit Vijaykumar
 Whole-time Director

 DIN: 10469386

Sateesh Seetharamiah
Whole-time Director

DIN: 09328904

Bengaluru

April 15, 2025

P. Prakash
Chief Financial Officer

Divakar B.
Company Secretary

Membership No. A64015
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Statement of Changes in Equity
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Equity share 
capital

Other equity

Total

Reserve and surplus

Other 
comprehensive 

income (2)

Capital 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Business 
transfer 

adjustment 
reserve (1)

Balances as on April 1, 2023  1,31,184  (3,44,760)  3,59,183  1,070  1,46,677 

Changes in equity for the period ended Mar 31, 2024

Profit for the period  –  –  83,488  –  83,488 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset, 
net of tax effect

 –  –  –  86  86 

Total comprehensive income  1,31,184  (3,44,760)  4,42,672  1,156  2,30,252 

Dividends  –  –  (1,08,883)  –  (1,08,883)

Balance as of March 31, 2024  1,31,184  (3,44,760)  3,33,789  1,156  1,21,369 

Balance as of April 1, 2024  1,31,184  (3,44,760)  3,33,789  1,156  1,21,369 

Changes in equity for the period ended Mar 31, 2025

Profit for the period  –  –  1,09,491  –  1,09,491 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset, 
net of tax effect

 –  –  –  (124)  (124)

Total comprehensive income  1,31,184  (3,44,760)  4,43,280  1,032  2,30,736 

Dividends  –  –  (52,474)  –  (52,474)

Balance as of March 31, 2025  1,31,184  (3,44,760)  3,90,806  1,032  1,78,262 

(1) Transfer of goodwill and intangible assets between entities under common control taken to Business Transfer Adjustment Reserve.
(2) A description of the purposes of each reserve within equity have been disclosed in Note 2.10

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of EdgeVerve Systems Limited

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W/ W-100018

Amit Ved
Partner

Membership No. 120600

Karmesh Vaswani
Chairman

DIN: 10193181

 Sajit Vijaykumar
 Whole-time Director

 DIN: 10469386

Sateesh Seetharamiah
Whole-time Director

DIN: 09328904

Bengaluru

April 15, 2025

P. Prakash
Chief Financial Officer

Divakar B.
Company Secretary

Membership No. A64015
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Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting policy
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for effects of transactions of non-cash nature, 
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing 
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company 
considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash to be cash equivalents.

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Note 
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year  1,09,491  83,488 

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash generated by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization expense 2.1  2,577  3,038 

Income tax expense 2.15  44,126  34,078 

Impairment (gain) / loss recognized on financial assets 2.18  (703)  419 

Reversal for post-sales client support and others 2.18  (70)  (37)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 2.17  (8)  (2)

Interest income 2.17  (4,349)  (4,558)

Gain on sale of investments carried at fair value 2.17  (3,708)  (2,541)

Exchange difference on translation of assets and liabilities  (39)  (77)

Changes in assets and liabilities

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue  (13,084)  864 

Loans, other financial assets and other assets 2.4  (3,266)  (1,091)

Trade payables 2.12  (3,031)  623 

Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions  5,201  (7,681)

Cash generated from operations  1,33,137  1,06,523 

Income taxes paid, net of refunds  (39,866)  (12,621)

Net cash generated from operating activities  93,271  93,902 

Cash flows from investing activities

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment  (1,362)  (2,010)

Payments to acquire financial assets

Liquid mutual fund units  (2,88,400)  (2,90,100)

Proceeds on sale of financial assets

Liquid mutual fund units  2,80,235  2,83,454 

Redemption of fixed maturity plan securities

Interest received on bank deposits and others  4,087  4,555 

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities  (5,441)  (4,101)
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Particulars Note 
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Cash flows from financing activities:

Payment of dividend to holding company  (52,474)  (1,08,883)

Net cash used in financing activities  (52,474)  (1,08,883)

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and 
cash equivalents

 81  (89)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  35,437  (19,171)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.7  41,151  60,322 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2.7  76,588  41,151 

Supplementary information

Restricted cash balance 2.7  –  – 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of EdgeVerve Systems Limited

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W/ W-100018

Amit Ved
Partner

Membership No. 120600

Karmesh Vaswani
Chairman

DIN: 10193181

 Sajit Vijaykumar
 Whole-time Director

 DIN: 10469386

Sateesh Seetharamiah
Whole-time Director

DIN: 09328904

Bengaluru

April 15, 2025

P. Prakash
Chief Financial Officer

Divakar B.
Company Secretary

Membership No. A64015
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Notes to the financial statements

1.	 Overview

1.1	 Company overview
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (“the Company”) is a limited 
company incorporated in India. It is a wholly-owned subsidiary 
of Infosys Limited. The address of its registered office is Plot 
No. 44, Electronic City, Hosur Main Road, Bengaluru 560100, 
Karnataka, India. The Company defines, develops and operates 
innovative cloud-hosted business platforms and software 
products as part of the Edge suite of products or Finacle 
product, which can be deployed either on premises or on cloud 
environments depending on its products. The Company provides 
implementation, integration and support services to help 
customers realize benefits from software solutions. 

With effect from August 01, 2015, ‘Finacle’ and ‘Edge services’ 
businesses of Infosys Limited were transferred to the Company. 
The purchase consideration for the transfer was discharged by 
way of issue and allotment of equity shares and non-convertible 
unsecured debentures.

The financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board 
of Directors on April 15, 2025.

1.2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical 
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments, which are measured at fair values and the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (to the extent notified). 
The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

As the yearend figures are taken from the source and rounded to 
the nearest digit, the figures reported for the previous year might 
not always add up to the year figures reported in this statement.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except 
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or 
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change 
in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The material accounting 
policy information used in preparation of the audited financial 
statements has been discussed in the respective notes.

1.3	 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity 
with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and 
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. The application of accounting policies that 
require critical accounting estimates involving complex and 
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these 
financial statements have been disclosed in Note 1.4. Accounting 
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in 
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of 

changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in 
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period 
in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.4	 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
a. Revenue recognition
The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to 
transfer multiple products and services to a customer. Revenues 
from customer contracts are considered for recognition and 
measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, 
by the parties to the contract, the parties to the contract are 
committed to perform their respective obligations under the 
contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. The Company 
assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies 
distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of 
distinct performance obligations to determine the deliverables 
and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from 
such deliverables, and allocation of transaction price to these 
distinct performance obligations involves significant judgment.

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in 
accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-
of-completion method requires the Company to determine 
the actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion 
of the estimated total efforts or costs to be incurred. Efforts or 
costs expended have been used to measure progress towards 
completion as there is a direct relationship between input and 
productivity. The estimation of total efforts or costs involves 
significant judgment and is assessed throughout the period 
of the contract to reflect any changes based on the latest 
available information.

Contracts with customers include subcontractor services or 
third-party vendor equipment or software in certain integrated 
services arrangements. In these types of arrangements, revenue 
from sales of third-party vendor products or services is recorded 
net of costs when the Company is acting as an agent between 
the customer and the vendor, and gross when the Company 
is the principal for the transaction. In doing so, the Company 
first evaluates whether it obtains control of the specified goods 
or services before they are transferred to the customer. The 
Company considers whether it is primarily responsible for 
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified goods or services, 
inventory risk, pricing discretion and other factors to determine 
whether it controls the specified goods or services and therefore, 
is acting as a principal or an agent. 

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts 
are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable 
based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

b. Income tax
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments 
are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, 
including amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain 
tax positions. (Refer to Notes 2.15 and 2.20)

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, the 
Management considers whether some portion or all of the 
deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate 
realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon 
the generation of future taxable income during the periods 
in which the temporary differences become deductible. The 
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Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred 
income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax-
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level 
of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable 
income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets 
are deductible, the Management believes that the Company will 
realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount 
of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however, 
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable 
income during the carry forward period are reduced.

c. Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment represents a significant 
proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining 
an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected 
residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and 
residual values of the Company’s assets are determined by the 
Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed 
periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are 
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as 
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as 
changes in technology. (Refer to Note 2.1)

1.5	 Earnings per equity share 
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the 
net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed 
by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also 
the weighted average number of equity shares that could have 
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the 
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at 
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted 
as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. 
Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently 
for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity 
shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for 
any share splits and bonus share issues, including for changes 
effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by 
the Board of Directors.

2.1	 Property, plant and equipment
Accounting policy
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs, directly 
attributable to the acquisition, are capitalized until property, 
plant and equipment are ready for use as intended by the 
Management. The Company depreciates property, plant and 
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Plant and machinery(1) 5 years

Computer equipment(1) 3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures(1) 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements Lower of useful life of 
the asset or lease term

(1)	 Based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the 
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the 
Management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these 
assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed periodically, including at each financial yearend. The 
useful lives are based on historical experience with similar assets 
as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their 
life, such as changes in technology.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified 
as capital advances under other non-current assets and the 
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed 
under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures 
relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. 
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated 
from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the 
asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment
Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For impairment 
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash 
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In 
such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to 
be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by 
the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the 
estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss 
is reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
(net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
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The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2025 are as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Leasehold 
improvements

 Plant and 
machinery 

 Office 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Furniture 
and fixtures  Total 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2024  26  21  253  19,579  211  20,090 

Additions  –  –  5  2,806  1  2,812 

Deletions*  –  –  –  (1,380)  (24)  (1,404)

Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2025  26  21  258  21,005  188  21,498 

Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2024  (26)  (19)  (214)  (14,413)  (204)  (14,877)

Depreciation  –  –  (19)  (2,532)  (4)  (2,555)

Accumulated depreciation on deletions  –  –  –  1,379  24  1,403 

Accumulated depreciation  (26)  (19)  (233)  (15,566)  (184)  (16,028)

Carrying value as of March 31, 2025  –  2  25  5,439  4  5,470 

*During the year ended March 31, 2025, certain assets which were not in use having gross book value of ₹1,404 lakh (Net book 
value: Nil) were retired.

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2024 were as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Leasehold 
improvements

 Plant and 
machinery 

 Office 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Furniture and 
fixtures  Total 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2023  26  21  256  19,175  252  19,731 

Additions  –  –  23  1,754  1  1,778 

Deletions*  –  –  (26)  (1,350)  (43)  (1,419)

Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2024  26  21  253  19,579  211  20,090 

Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2023  (24)  (18)  (221)  (12,783)  (240)  (13,286)

Depreciation  (2)  (1)  (20)  (2,980)  (7)  (3,009)

Accumulated depreciation on deletions  –  –  26  1,350  43  1,419 

Accumulated depreciation  (26)  (19)  (214)  (14,413)  (204)  (14,876)

Carrying value as of March 31, 2024  –  2  39  5,166  7  5,213 

*During the year ended March 31, 2024, certain assets which were not in use having gross book value of ₹1,419 lakh (Net book 
value: Nil) were retired.

The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.1a	Capital work-in-progress
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Capital work-in-progress  877  538 

Total capital work-in-progress  877  538 

The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ending March 31, 2025 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years  >3 years  Total 

Projects in progress  877  –  –  –  877 

Total  877  –  –  –  877 
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The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ending March 31, 2024 was as follows: 

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years  >3 years  Total 

Projects in progress  538  –  –  –  538 

Total  538  –  –  –  538 

2.2	 Other intangible assets
Accounting policy
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective 
individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an 
identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors, including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other 
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures 
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically 
including at each financial year end.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and 
commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability 
to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include the cost of 
material, direct labor, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. 

The changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2025 are as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Software-related Total

Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2024  117  117 

Additions through business transfer  –  – 

Deletions during the year  –  – 

Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2025  117  117 

Accumulated amortization as at April 1, 2024 (31) (31)

Amortization expense (21) (21)

Accumulated amortization on deletions  –  – 

Accumulated amortization as at March 31, 2025 (52) (52)

Carrying value as at April 1, 2024  86  86 

Carrying value as at March 31, 2025  65  65 

Estimated useful life (in years) 5-6  – 

Estimated remaining useful life (in years)  3  – 
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The changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Software-related Total

Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2023  117  117 

Additions through business transfer  –  – 

Deletions during the year  –  – 

Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2024  117  117 

Accumulated amortization as at April 1, 2023 (10) (10)

Amortization expense (21) (21)

Accumulated amortization on deletions  –  – 

Accumulated amortization as at March 31, 2024 (31) (31)

Carrying value as at April 1, 2023  107  107 

Carrying value as at March 31, 2024  86  86 

Estimated useful life (in years) 5-6  – 

Estimated remaining useful life (in years)  4  – 

2.3	 Investments
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Unquoted current investments 

Investments carried at fair value 
through profit or loss

Liquid mutual fund units  61,595  49,721 

Total investments  61,595  49,721 

Method of fair valuation:
(In ₹lakh)

Class of investment Method
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Liquid mutual 
fund units

Quoted price  61,595  49,721 

2.4	 Loans
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Non-current

Loans

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to employees  2  1 

Total non-current loans  2  1 

Current

Other loans

Loans to employees  217  248 

Total current loans  217  248 

Total loans  219  249 

2.5	 Other financial assets
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Non-current

Security deposits  1  1 

Unbilled revenues  2,700  2,768 

Total non-current other financial 
assets

 2,701  2,769 

Current

Restricted deposits*  2,040  6,517 

Unbilled revenues (1)#  37,420  34,411 

Interest accrued but not due  2,615  2,353 

Others (2)  1,086  113 

Total current other financial assets  43,161  43,394 

Total other financial assets  45,862  46,163 

Financial assets carried at 
amortized cost

 45,862  46,163 

(1) Includes dues from holding 
and fellow subsidiaries (Refer 
to Note 2.21)

 2,646  – 

(2) Includes dues from holding 
and fellow subsidiaries (Refer 
to Note 2.21)

 1  – 

*Restricted deposits represent deposit with financial institutions 
to settle employee-related obligations as and when they arise 
during the normal course of business.

#Classified as financial asset as right to consideration is 
unconditional upon a passage of time.
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2.6	 Trade receivables
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Trade receivable considered good – unsecured (1)  25,387  19,041 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss  1,489  2,505 

Trade receivable considered good – unsecured  23,898  16,536 

Trade receivable – credit impaired – unsecured  –  – 

Less: Allowance for credit impairment  –  – 

Trade receivable – credit impaired – unsecured  –  – 

Total trade receivables  23,898  16,536 
(1) Includes dues from holding company and fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.21)  1,471  639 

Balance as on March 31, 2025

Particulars Not due < 6 months 6 months-1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years  >3 years  Total 

Undisputed trade receivables – 
considered good

 10,890  11,270  651  2,094  293  190  25,387 

Undisputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Disputed trade receivables – 
considered good

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Disputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Less: Allowance for credit loss  –  –  –  –  –  –  1,489 

Total trade receivables  10,890  11,270  651  2,094  293  190  23,898 

Balance as on March 31, 2024

Particulars Not due < 6 months 6 months-1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years  >3 years  Total 

Undisputed trade 
receivables – considered good

 6,151  9,470  2,509  513  210  188  19,041 

Undisputed trade 
receivables – credit impaired

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Disputed trade 
receivables – considered good

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Disputed trade 
receivables – credit impaired

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Less: Allowance for credit loss  –  – –  –  –  –  2,505 

Total trade receivables  6,151  9,470  2,509  513  210  188  16,536 

2.7	 Cash and cash equivalents
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Balances with banks

In current and deposit accounts  76,588  41,151 

Total cash and cash equivalents  76,588  41,151 

Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity  –  – 

Balances with banks held as margin money deposits against guarantees  –  – 
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Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 
2024 do not include any restricted cash and bank balances.

The deposits that are maintained by the Company with banks 
and financial institutions comprise time deposits, which can be 
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or 
penalty on the principal.

2.8	 Other assets
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Non-current

Others

Prepaid expenses  412  167 

 Cost of obtaining a contract  35  – 

Cost of fulfilment  8,480  4,194 

Prepaid gratuity (Refer to Note 
2.19)

 1,034  352 

Unbilled revenues (1)  3,996  3,713 

Total non-current other assets  13,957  8,426 

Current

Advance other than capital 
advances

Payment to vendors for supply 
of goods / services

 504  54 

Others

Unbilled revenues(1)  12,267  9,133 

Prepaid expenses  5,059  5,720 

Withholding taxes and others*  4,582  5,638 

Cost of obtaining a contract  2,507  – 

Cost of fulfilment  1,878  1,691 

Total current other assets  26,797  22,236 

Total other assets  40,754  30,662 

(1)	 Classified as non-financial asset as the contractual right to consideration is 
dependent on completion of contractual milestones

* 	 Withholding taxes and others primarily consist of input tax credits.

2.9	 Financial instruments
Accounting policy
2.9.1	Initial recognition
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities 
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at 
fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables, 
which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair 
value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial 
recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are 
accounted for at the trade date. 

2.9.2	 Subsequent measurement
a. Non-derivative financial instruments
(i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost 
if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election 
for its investments which are classified as equity instruments 
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other 
comprehensive income based on its business model.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above 
categories is subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

(iv) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, 
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments.

b. Derivative financial instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as 
foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the 
risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. 
The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

(i) Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss
This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities, which 
are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives 
constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may 
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial 
Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated as 
hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is 
categorized as a financial asset or financial liability at fair value 
through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially 
at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized 
in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange 
gains or losses are included in other income. Assets/ liabilities in 
this category are presented as current assets / current liabilities 
if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized 
within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.
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2.9.3	 Derecognition of financial instruments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies 
for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a 
part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.9.4	 Fair value of financial instruments
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the 
company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are 
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting 
date. The methods used to determine fair value include 
discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices 
and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result 
in general approximation of value, and such value may never 
actually be realized.

Refer to the table below for the disclosure on carrying value 
and fair value of financial assets and liabilities. For financial 
assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance 

Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying 
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity 
of these instruments.

2.9.5	 Impairment
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected 
credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets that are not fair 
valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables 
with no significant financing component is measured at an 
amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, ECL 
is measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition, in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. 
The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to 
be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2025 are as follows: 

(In ₹lakh) 

Particulars Note Amortized 
cost

Financial assets / liabilities 
at fair value through profit 

or loss

Financial assets / liabilities 
at fair value through OCI

Total 
carrying 

value

Total fair 
valueDesignated 

upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Equity 
instruments 
designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Assets

Cash and cash 
equivalents

2.7  76,588  –  –  –  –  76,588  76,588 

Investments – Liquid 
mutual funds units

2.3  –  –  61,595  –  –  61,595  61,595 

Trade receivables 2.6  23,898  –  –  –  –  23,898  23,898 

Loans 2.4  219  –  –  –  –  219  219 

Other financial assets (1) 2.5  45,862  –  –  –  –  45,862  45,862 

Total  1,46,567  –  61,595  –  –  2,08,162  2,08,162 

Liabilities

Trade payables 2.12  1,056  –  –  –  –  1,056  1,056 

Other financial 
liabilities

2.11  37,882  –  –  –  –  37,882  37,882 

Total  38,938  –  –  –  –  38,938  38,938 

(1)	 Excludes unbilled revenue on contracts where the right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones



48 | Financial Statements

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 are as follows: 

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars Note Amortized 
cost

Financial assets / 
liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss

Financial assets / 
liabilities at fair value 

through OCI
Total 

carrying 
value

Total fair 
valueDesignated 

upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Equity 
instruments 
designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 2.7  41,151  –  –  –  –  41,151  41,151 

Investments – Liquid mutual 
funds units

2.3  –  –  49,721  –  –  49,721  49,721 

Trade receivables 2.6  16,536  –  –  –  –  16,536  16,536 

Loans 2.4  249  –  –  –  –  249  249 

Other financial assets (1) 2.5  46,163  –  –  –  –  46,163  46,163 

Total  1,04,099  –  49,721  –  –  1,53,820  1,53,820 

Liabilities 

Trade payables 2.12  4,008  –  –  –  –  4,008  4,008 

Other financial liabilities 2.11  32,286  –  –  –  –  32,286  32,286 

Total  36,294  –  –  –  –  36,294  36,294 

(1)	 Excludes unbilled revenue on contracts where the right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) 
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 – Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars As on March 31, 
2025

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period / 
year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Investment in liquid mutual fund units (Refer to Note 2.3)  61,595  61,595  –  – 

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh) 

Particulars As on March 31, 
2024

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period / 
year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Investment in liquid mutual fund units (Refer to Note 2.3)  49,721  49,721  –  – 
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The foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2025 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars US dollars Euro 

United 
Kingdom 

Pound 
Sterling

Australian 
dollars

Other 
currencies Total 

Net financials assets  28,664  3,336  833  899  3,256  36,989 

Net financial liabilities  (18,209)  (229)  (74)  (16)  (349)  (18,878)

Total  10,455  3,107  759  883  2,907  18,111 

The foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2024 was as follows:

(In ₹lakh) 

Particulars US dollars Euro 

United 
Kingdom 

Pound 
Sterling

Australian 
dollars

Other 
currencies Total 

Net financials assets  27,855  1,785  713  (583)  7,542  37,312 

Net financial liabilities  (13,689)  (479)  (79)  (8)  (200)  (14,455)

Total  14,166  1,306  634  (591)  7,342  22,857 

The sensitivity analysis between Indian rupee and USD is as follows: 

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Impact on the Company’s incremental operating margins 0.31% 0.39%

Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the income and expenses in foreign currency upon conversion into functional 
currency due to exchange rate fluctuations between the previous reporting year and the current reporting year.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the 
credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to ₹23,898 lakh and ₹16,536 lakh as of March 31, 2025 and 
March 31, 2024, respectively, and unbilled revenue amounting to ₹56,383 lakh and ₹50,025 lakh as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, 
respectively. Credit risk has always been managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring 
the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company uses a 
provision matrix to compute the expected credit losses on the customer balances based on internal and external factors.

There is no single customer contributing more than 10% of total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Credit risk exposure
The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-45 days.

The movement in credit loss allowance on customer balance is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Balance at the beginning  2,723  2,546 

Provisions recognized / (reversed) (655)  423 

Write-offs (180) (280)

Translation differences  –  34 

Balance at the end  1,888  2,723 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks and in liquid mutual fund units.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time. The Company’s principal 
sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company believes that the 
working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. 

As of March 31, 2025, the Company had a working capital of ₹1,39,985 lakh including cash and cash equivalents of ₹76,588 lakh and 
current investments of ₹61,595 lakh. As of March 31, 2024, the Company had a working capital of ₹88,292 lakh, including cash and cash 
equivalents of ₹41,151 lakh and current investments of ₹49,721 lakh.

As of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the outstanding compensated absences were ₹1,945 lakh and ₹1,719 lakh, respectively, which 
have been substantially funded. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

The details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2025 are as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

 Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total 

Trade payables  1,056  –  –  –  1,056 

Other liabilities  35,935  –  –  –  35,935 

 36,991  –  –  –  36,991 

The details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024 are as follows:

(In ₹lakh) 

 Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total 

Trade payables  4,008  –  –  –  4,008 

Other liabilities  30,567  –  –  –  30,567 

 34,575  –  –  –  34,575 

2.10	Equity
Share capital
Accounting policy
Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options 
are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Description of reserves
Retained earnings 
Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

Other components of equity
Other components of equity consist of remeasurement of net defined benefit liability / asset net of taxes.

Share capital
(In ₹lakh, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Authorized

Equity shares, ₹10 par value

410,00,00,000 (410,00,00,000) equity shares  4,10,000  4,10,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

Equity shares, ₹10 par value  1,31,184  1,31,184 

131,18,40,000 (131,18,40,000) equity shares fully paid-up and held by the holding company, Infosys 
Limited

 1,31,184  1,31,184 
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The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ₹10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders after the distribution of all preferential amount. 
However, no such preferential amount exists currently.

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Name of the shareholder

As at March 31,

2025 2024

Number of 
shares % held Number of shares % held

Infosys Limited, holding company 131,18,40,000 100% 131,18,40,000 100%

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2025 and March 
31, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars

As at March 31,

2025 2024

Number of 
shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Number of shares at the beginning and end of the year 131,18,40,000 1,311,84,00,000 131,18,40,000 1,311,84,00,000

The details of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Promoter name

As at March 31,

2025 2024

Number of 
shares % held % change Number of shares % held % change

Infosys Limited, 
holding company

131,18,40,000 100 0 131,18,40,000 100 0

2.10.1	 Dividend
The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a 
liability on the date of declaration by the Board of Directors.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Companies are required to pay / distribute dividend after deducting 
applicable withholding income taxes.

The amount of per share (₹10/- par value) dividend recognized as distribution to equity shareholders is as follows:

(In ₹)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Final dividend for fiscal 2023  –  3.05 

Interim dividend for fiscal 2024  –  2.50 

Second interim special dividend for fiscal 2024  –  2.75 

Final dividend for fiscal 2024  4.00  – 
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During the year ended March 31, 2025, on account of the final dividend for fiscal 2024, the Company has incurred a net cash 
outflow of ₹52,474 lakh.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting on April 15, 2025, recommended a final dividend of ₹8 per equity share for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025. This payment is subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company proposed 
to be held on July 21, 2025, and if approved, would result in a net cash outflow of approximately ₹1,04,947 lakh.

2.11	Other financial liabilities
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Non-current

Accrued compensation to employees  2  – 

Total non-current other financial liabilities  2  – 

Current

Accrued compensation to employees  4,293  4,673 

Capital creditors  2,515  734 

Compensated absences  1,945  1,719 

Accrued expenses (1)  28,395  24,930 

Other payables (2)  732  230 

Total current other financial liabilities  37,880  32,286 

Total other financial liabilities  37,882  32,286 

Financial liability carried at amortized cost  37,882  32,286 
(1) Includes dues to holding company and fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.21)  11,531  10,487 
(2) Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.21)  5  9 

2.12	Trade payables
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Current

Trade payables (1)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  –  475 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  1,056  3,533 

Total trade payables  1,056  4,008 
(1) Includes dues to holding company / fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.21)  285  79 

As at March 31, 2025, there are no outstanding dues to micro, small and medium enterprises. There is no interest due on the same.

The trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows: 

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total
Not due <1 yr 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years

MSME  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Others  588  468  –  –  –  1,056 

Disputed dues – MSME  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Disputed dues – Others  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Total trade payable  588 468  –  –  –  1,056 
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The trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2024 was as follows: 

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total
Not due <1 yr 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years

MSME  475  –  –  –  –  475 

Others  3,330 203  –  –  –  3,533 

Disputed dues – MSME  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Disputed dues – Others  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Total trade payable  3,805 203  –  –  –  4,008 

There are no transactions with struck-off companies for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

2.13	Other liabilities
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Current 

Unearned revenue  16,803  18,790 

Withholding taxes and other taxes  8,769  5,501 

Total current other liabilities  25,572  24,291 

Total other liabilities  25,572  24,291 

2.14	Provisions
Accounting policy
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability.

a. Post-sales client support and others
The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period, post-sales support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price, fixed-
timeframe contracts. Costs associated with such support services are accrued at the time related revenues are recorded in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. The Company estimates such costs based on historical experience and estimates are reviewed on a periodic basis for 
any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

b. Onerous contracts
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower 
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the 
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is 
established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

Provision for post-sales client support and others

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Current

Others

Post-sales client support and others  9  78 

Total provisions  9  78 
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The movement in provision for post-sales client support and 
others is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 
2025

Balance at the beginning  78 

Provisions reversal  (70)

Provision utilized  – 

Translation differences  1 

Balance at the end  9 

The provision for post-sales client support and others is expected 
to be utilized over a period of six months to one year.

2.15	Income taxes
Accounting policy
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. 
Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in 
equity or other comprehensive income. Current income tax for 
current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected 
to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the 
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax 
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realized. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to 
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences 
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes 
in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes 
the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred 
income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. 

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, 
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or 
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Tax 
benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee share 
options in excess of compensation charged to income are 
credited to securities premium.

Income tax expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss comprises:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Current taxes  43,928  34,545 

Deferred taxes  198  (467)

Income tax expense  44,126  34,078 

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year 
ended on March 31,2025 is 25.17%. The new income tax regime 
as per The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 has been opted 
by the Company from financial year 2019-20 onwards.

Income tax expense for the 12 months ended March 31,2025 and 
March 31, 2024 includes provision of ₹3,297 lakh and provision 
of ₹3,014 lakh, respectively, pertaining to prior periods on 
adjudication of certain matters in favor of the Company and 
upon filing of returns. 

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount 
computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the 
income before income taxes is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Profit before income taxes  1,53,617  1,17,566 

Enacted tax rates in India 25.17% 25.17%

Computed expected tax expense  38,662  29,589 

Overseas taxes, net of foreign tax 
credit

 1,595  930 

Prior year taxes  3,297  3,022 

Effect of non-deductible expenses  588  531 

Others  (16)  6 

Income tax expense  44,126  34,078 

The applicable Indian statutory tax rates for fiscal 2025 is 25.17% 
and fiscal 2024 is 25.17%. 

The details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of 
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows: 

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Income tax assets  14,066  14,704 

Current income tax liabilities  27,754  24,331 

Net current income tax assets / 
(liabilities) at the end

 (13,688)  (9,627)
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The gross movement in the current income tax asset for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Net current income tax assets at the beginning  (9,627)  12,298 

Income tax paid  39,866  12,621 

Current income tax expense (Refer to Note 2.15)  (43,928)  (34,545)

Net current income tax assets / (liabilities) at the end  (13,688)  (9,627)

The movement in gross deferred income tax assets and labilities (before setoff) for the year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
Carrying 

value as on 
April 01, 2024

Change 
through profit 

and loss

Changes 
through OCI

Translation 
difference

Carrying value 
as on March 

31, 2025

Deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment  (75)  9  –  –  (66)

Compensated absences  433  57  –  –  490 

Trade receivables  685  (210)  –  –  475 

Financial instruments  (62)  (57)  –  –  (119)

Interest received in income tax refund  342  –  –  –  342 

Outstanding dues of MSME u/s 43B(h)  –  18  –  –  18 

Post-sales client support  15  (15)  –  –  – 

Total deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)  1,339  (198)  –  –  1,141 

The movement in gross deferred income tax assets and labilities (before setoff) for the year ended March 31, 2024 was as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
Carrying 

value as on 
April 01, 2023

Change 
through profit 

and loss

Changes 
through OCI

Translation 
difference

Carrying 
value as on 

March 31, 
2024

Deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment  (112)  37  –  –  (75)

Compensated absences  385  48  –  –  433 

Trade receivables  641  45  –  –  685 

Financial instruments  (71)  9  –  –  (62)

Interest received in income tax refund  –  342  –  –  342 

Post-sales client support  29  (14)  –  –  15 

Total deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)  872  467  –  –  1,339 

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning  1,339  872 

Credits relating to temporary differences (Refer to Note 2.15)  (198) 467 

Net deferred income tax asset at the end  1,141  1,339 
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In assessing the reliability of deferred income tax assets, the 
Management considers whether some portion or all of the 
deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate 
realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon 
the generation of future taxable income during the periods 
in which the temporary differences become deductible. The 
Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred 
income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax-
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level 
of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable 
income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets 
are deductible, the Management believes that the Company will 
realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount 
of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however, 
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable 
income during the carry forward period are reduced.

2.16	Revenue from operations
Accounting policy
The Company derives revenues primarily from business IT 
services comprising software development and related services, 
consulting and package implementation and from the licensing 
of software products and platforms across our core and digital 
offerings (together called “software related services”). Contracts 
with customers are either on a time-and-material, unit of work, 
fixed-price or on a fixed-timeframe basis.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for 
recognition and measurement when the contract has been 
approved in writing, by the parties, to the contract, the parties to 
contract are committed to perform their respective obligations 
under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. 
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised 
products or services (“performance obligations”) to customers 
in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has 
received or expects to receive in exchange for these products 
or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as 
to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such 
uncertainty is resolved.

The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and 
identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. 
The Company allocates the transaction price to each distinct 
performance obligation based on the relative standalone selling 
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when 
sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling 
price. In the absence of such evidence, the primary method 
used to estimate standalone selling price is the expected cost 
plus a margin, under which the Company estimates the cost 
of satisfying the performance obligation and then adds an 
appropriate margin based on similar services. 

The Company’s contracts may include variable consideration 
including rebates, volume discounts and penalties. The 
Company includes variable consideration as part of transaction 
price when there is a basis to reasonably estimate the amount 
of the variable consideration and when it is probable that a 
significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized will 
not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable 
consideration is resolved.

Fixed-price maintenance revenue is recognized ratably either 
on a straight-line basis when services are performed through 
an indefinite number of repetitive acts over a specified period 
or ratably using a percentage-of-completion method when the 

pattern of benefits from the services rendered to the customer 
and the Company’s costs to fulfil the contract is not even through 
the period of contract because the services are generally discrete 
in nature and not repetitive. Revenue from other fixed-price, 
fixed-timeframe contracts, where the performance obligations 
are satisfied over time is recognized using the percentage-
of-completion method. Efforts or costs expended are used to 
determine progress towards completion as there is a direct 
relationship between input and productivity. Progress towards 
completion is measured as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred to 
date (representing work performed) to the estimated total costs 
or efforts. Estimates of transaction price and total costs or efforts 
are continuously monitored over the term of the contracts and 
are recognized in net profit in the period when these estimates 
change or when the estimates are revised. Revenues and the 
estimated total costs or efforts are subject to revision as the 
contract progresses. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on 
incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which such 
losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs 
to complete the contract. 

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic 
performance-based billing and / or milestone-based progress 
billings. Revenues in excess of billing are classified as unbilled 
revenue while billing in excess of revenues are classified as 
contract liabilities (which we refer to as “unearned revenues”).

In arrangements for software development, related services and 
maintenance services, the Company has applied the guidance in 
Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, by applying 
the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance 
obligation. The arrangements with customers generally meet 
the criteria for considering software development and related 
services as distinct performance obligations. For software 
development and related services, the performance obligations 
are satisfied as and when the services are rendered since the 
customer generally obtains control of the work as it progresses.

Revenue from licenses where the customer obtains a “right 
to use” the licenses is recognized at the time the license 
is made available to the customer. Revenue from licenses 
whether the customer obtains a “right to access” is recognized 
over the access period. 

Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three 
elements: license, implementation and Annual Technical Services 
(ATS). The Company has applied the principles under Ind AS 115 
to account for revenues from these performance obligations. 
When implementation services are provided in conjunction with 
the licensing arrangement and the same have been identified 
as two separate performance obligations, the transaction price 
for such contracts are allocated to each performance obligation 
of the contract based on their relative standalone selling prices. 
In the absence of standalone selling price for implementation, 
the performance obligation is estimated using the expected-
cost-plus-margin approach. Where the license is required to be 
substantially customized as part of the implementation service, 
the entire arrangement fee for license and implementation 
is considered to be a single performance obligation and the 
revenue is recognized using the percentage-of-completion 
method as the implementation is performed. Revenue from 
client training, support and other services arising due to the 
sale of software products is recognized as the performance 
obligations are satisfied. ATS revenue is recognized ratably over 
the period in which the services are rendered.



Financial Statements | 57

Contracts with customers include subcontractor services or 
third-party vendor equipment or software in certain integrated 
services arrangements. In these types of arrangements, revenue 
from sales of third-party vendor products or services is recorded 
net of costs when the Company is acting as an agent between 
the customer and the vendor, and gross when the Company 
is the principal for the transaction. In doing so, the Company 
first evaluates whether it obtains control of the specified goods 
or services before they are transferred to the customer. The 
Company considers whether it is primarily responsible for 
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified goods or services, 
inventory risk, pricing discretion and other factors to determine 
whether it controls the specified goods or services and therefore, 
is acting as a principal or an agent.

A contract modification is a change in the scope or price or both 
of a contract that is approved by the parties to the contract. 
A contract modification that results in the addition of distinct 
performance obligations is accounted for either as a separate 
contract if the additional services are priced at the standalone 
selling price or as a termination of the existing contract and 
creation of a new contract if they are not priced at the standalone 
selling price. If the modification does not result in a distinct 
performance obligation, it is accounted for as part of the existing 
contract on a cumulative catch-up basis.

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract (i.e., costs 
that would not have been incurred if the contract had not 
been obtained) are recognized as an asset if the Company 
expects to recover them. 

Certain eligible, non-recurring costs (e.g. set-up or transition 
or transformation costs) that do not represent a separate 
performance obligation are recognized as an asset when 
such costs (a) relate directly to the contract; (b) generate 
or enhance resources of the Company that will be used in 
satisfying the performance obligation in the future; and (c) are 
expected to be recovered. Such capitalized contract costs are 
amortized over the respective contract life on a systematic basis 
consistent with the transfer of goods or services to customer to 
which the asset relates.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenues from operations for the years ended March 31, 2025 
and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Revenue from operations  4,08,972  3,56,938 

Total revenue from operations  4,08,972  3,56,938 

The percentage of revenue from fixed-price contracts for 
the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is 88% 
and 89%, respectively.

Trade receivables and contract balances
The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections 
results in receivables, unbilled revenue, and unearned revenue 
on the Company’s Balance Sheet. Amounts are billed as work 
progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms, 
either at periodic intervals (e.g., monthly or quarterly) or upon 
achievement of contractual milestones.

The Company’s receivables are rights to consideration that 
are unconditional. Unbilled revenues comprising revenues in 
excess of billings from time-and-material contracts and fixed-
price maintenance contracts are classified as financial assets 
when the right to consideration is unconditional and is due only 
after a passage of time.

Invoicing to the clients for other fixed-timeframe contracts is 
based on milestones as defined in the contract and therefore 
the timing of revenue recognition is different from the timing 
of invoicing to the customers. Therefore, unbilled revenues for 
other fixed-price contracts (contract assets) are classified as non-
financial assets because the right to consideration is dependent 
on the completion of contractual milestones.

Invoicing in excess of earnings is classified as unearned revenue.

Trade receivable and unbilled revenues are presented net of 
impairment in the Balance Sheet.

During the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the 
Company recognized revenue of ₹14,758 lakh and ₹13,659 lakh 
arising from opening unearned revenue as of April 1, 2024 and 
April 1, 2023, respectively.

During the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, 
₹11,893 lakh and ₹11,829 lakh of unbilled revenue pertaining 
to other fixed-price and fixed-timeframe contracts as of 
April 1, 2024 and April 1, 2023, respectively, have been 
reclassified to trade receivables upon billing to customers on 
completion of milestones.

Performance obligations and remaining performance 
obligations
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the 
aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized 
as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as 
to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts 
in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in 
Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining 
performance obligation-related disclosures for contracts where 
the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value 
to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to 
date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time-and-
material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are 
subject to change and are affected by several factors, including 
terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic 
revalidations, adjustments for revenue that has not materialized 
and adjustments for currency.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are 
completely or partially unsatisfied as of March 31, 2025, 
other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned 
above, is ₹4,74,890 lakh. Out of this, the Company expects to 
recognize revenue of around 52.19% within the next one year 
and the remaining thereafter. The contracts can generally 
be terminated by the customers and typically includes an 
enforceable termination penalty payable by them. Generally, 
customers have not terminated contracts without cause. 
Based on current assessment, the occurrence of the same is 
expected to be remote.
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2.17	Other income, net
Other income comprises primarily interest income, dividend 
income, gain / loss on investments and exchange gain / loss 
on forward and options contracts and on translation of foreign 
currency assets and liabilities. Interest income is recognized using 
the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized 
when the right to receive payment is established.

Foreign currency Accounting policy
Functional currency
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. 
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees 
(rounded off to lakh).

Transactions and translations
Foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities 
are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange 
rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains or losses 
resulting from such translations are included in net profit in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and reported within exchange 
gains / (losses) on translation of assets and liabilities, net. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency 
and measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate 
prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency 
and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange 
rate prevalent at the date of transaction. The related revenue and 
expense are recognized using the same exchange rate.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign 
currency transactions are included in determining net profit 
for the period in which the transaction is settled. Revenue, 

expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated into the relevant functional currencies using the 
exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

Other income for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 
31, 2024 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Interest income received on 
financial assets – carried at 
amortized cost:

Deposits with banks and 
others

 4,349  4,558 

Profit on sale of property, plant 
and equipment

 8  2 

Exchange gain / (loss) on 
translation of assets and liabilities

 627  (244)

Gain on investment carried at fair 
value through profit or loss

 3,708  2,541 

Interest income on income tax 
refund

 2  2,726 

Miscellaneous income  15  45 

Total other income  8,709  9,628 
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2.18 Expenses 
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries including bonus  72,452  70,680 

Contribution to provident and other funds  3,898  3,685 

Staff welfare  1,312  887 

 77,662  75,252 

Travel expenses

Overseas travel expenses  6,630  7,607 

Travelling and conveyance  765  602 

 7,395  8,209 

Cost of software packages and others

For own use  12,348  14,105 

Third-party items bought for service delivery to clients  28,915  11,822 

 41,263  25,927 

Other expenses

Repairs and maintenance  1,370  1,408 

Brand and marketing  6,768  6,912 

Communication expenses  503  859 

Operating lease payments  2,691  2,495 

Rates and taxes  138  118 

Commission charge  2,577  3,508 

Fuel and power  339  397 

Consumables  320  111 

Reversal for post-sales client support and others  (70) (37)

Impairment (gains) / loss recognized on financial assets  (703)  419 

Contributions toward Corporate Social Responsibility  2,335  2,108 

Cost of fulfilment – Amortization  1,445  1,238 

Auditor’s remuneration

Statutory audit fees  43  36 

Tax matters  –  – 

Others  –  – 

Others  762  517 

 18,518  20,089 
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2.19	Employee benefits
Accounting policy
2.19.1	 Gratuity
For gratuity, the Company provides a defined benefit retirement 
plan (“the Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible Indian employees. 
The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s 
salary and the tenure of employment with the Company. The 
Company contributes gratuity liabilities to the Infosys Limited 
Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust (“the Trust”). Trustees administer 
contributions made to the Trust and contributions are invested 
in a scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation of India as 
permitted by Indian law.

The Company operates defined benefit pension plans in certain 
overseas jurisdictions, in accordance with the local laws. These 
plans are managed by third-party fund managers. The plans 
provide for periodic payouts after retirement and / or a lump-
sum payment as set out in the rules of each fund and includes 
death and disability benefits. The defined benefit plans require 
contributions, which are based on a percentage of salary that 
varies depending on the age of the respective employees.

Liabilities with regard to these defined benefit plans are 
determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an external 
actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected 
unit credit method. These defined benefit plans expose the 
Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate 
risk and market risk.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit 
plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses 
through remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 
/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and 
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The 
actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields 
computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the 
defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive 
income. The effect of any plan amendments is recognized in net 
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.19.2	 Superannuation
Certain employees of EdgeVerve are participants in a defined 
contribution plan. The Company has no further obligations to 
the superannuation plan beyond its monthly contributions, 
which are periodically contributed to EdgeVerve Employee 
Superannuation Trust fund, the corpus of which is invested with 
the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

2.19.3	 Provident fund
Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which 
is a defined contribution plan. Both the eligible employee and 
the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund 
plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s 
salary. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are 
deposited in a government-administered provident fund. The 
Company has no further obligations under the provident fund 
plan beyond its monthly contributions.

2.19.4	 Compensated absences
The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated 
absences, which are both accumulating and non-accumulating 
in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an 
independent actuary using projected unit credit method on the 
additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the 
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet 
date. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences are 
recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

a. Gratuity
The funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts 
recognized in the Company’s financial statements as of March 31, 
2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Change in benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at the 
beginning

 7,780  7,049 

Service cost  653  606 

Interest expense  534  489 

Transfer of obligation  27  (18)

Remeasurements – Actuarial 
(gains) / losses

 258  (37)

Benefits paid  (323)  (309)

Benefit obligations at the end  8,929  7,780 

Change in plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at the 
beginning

 8,133  7,861 

Interest income  589  546 

Transfer of assets  (27)  (43)

Contributions  1,500  – 

Return on plan assets greater / 
(lesser) than discount rate

 91  78 

Benefits paid  (323)  (309)

Fair value of plan assets at the end  9,963  8,133 

Funded status  1,034  352 

Prepaid gratuity benefit  1,034  352 

The amounts for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 
31, 2024 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under 
employee benefit expenses are as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Service cost  653  606 

Net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability / (asset)

 (55)  (57)

Net gratuity cost  598  549 
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The amounts for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 
31, 2024 recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income are as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Remeasurements of the net 
defined benefit liability / (asset)

Actuarial (gains) / losses  258  (37)

(Return) / loss on plan assets 
excluding amounts included in 
the net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability / (asset)

 (91)  (78)

Actuarial (gains) / losses 
recognized in OCI

 167  (115)

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

(Gain) / loss from change in 
financial assumptions

 8  40 

(Gain) / loss from change in 
experience

 250  (77)

 258  (37)

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine 
benefit obligations as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 
2024 are as follows:

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Discount rate (1) 6.5% 7.0%

Weighted average rate of increase 
in compensation levels (2)

7.5% 7.5%

Weighted average duration of 
defined benefit obligation (3)

 5.7 years  5.9 years 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net 
periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 
March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Discount rate 7.0% 6.5%

Weighted average rate of increase 
in compensation levels

7.5% 7.5%

(1)	 For the domestic defined benefit plan in India, the market for high quality 
corporate bonds being not developed, the yield of government bonds is 
considered as the discount rate. For most of our overseas defined benefit 
plans, given that the market for high quality corporate bonds is not 
developed, the government bond rate adjusted for corporate spreads is 
used.

(2)	 The average rate of increase in compensation levels is determined by the 
Company, considering factors such as past compensation revision trends, 
inflation in respective markets and the Management’s estimate of future 
salary increases.

(3)	 Attrition rate considered is the Management’s estimate based on the 
past long-term trend of employee turnover in the Company. The tenure 
has been considered taking into account the past long-term trend of 

employees’ average remaining service life, which reflects the average 
estimated term of post-employment benefit obligation.

Sensitivity of significant assumptions used for valuation of 
defined benefit obligations is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)I

Impact from percentage point 
increase / decrease in

As at March 31, 
2025

Discount rate  471 

Weighted average rate of increase 
in compensation level

 480 

Sensitivity to significant actuarial assumptions is computed 
by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of 
the defined benefit obligation by one percentage, keeping all 
other actuarial assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis 
is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other 
assumptions constant. In practice, this is not probable, and 
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a 
salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign 
defined benefit plans.

The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards 
gratuity to the Edgeerve Systems Limited Employees’ Gratuity 
Trust Fund. Trustees administer contributions made to the Trust. 
As of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Plan assets have 
been primarily invested in insurer-managed funds. 

Actual return on assets for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 
March 31, 2024 were ₹589 lakh and ₹546 lakh, respectively.

The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected 
long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The 
discount rate is based on the government securities yield.

The contributions for gratuity are invested in a scheme with the 
Life Insurance Corporation of India as permitted by Indian law. 
Entire plan asset is allocated under schemes of insurance

The Company is expected to contribute ₹500 lakh to the 
gratuity fund during FY2026.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

(In ₹lakh)

Within 1 year  1,296 

1-2 years  1,264 

2-3 years  1,119 

3-4 years  1,087 

4-5 years  1,016 

5-10 years  3,779 

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in 
accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India.
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b. Provident fund
The Company contributed ₹3,288 lakh during the year ended 
March 31, 2025 (₹3,119 lakh for the year ended March 31, 2024).

c. Superannuation
The Company contributed ₹800 lakh during the year ended 
March 31, 2025 (₹794 lakh for the year ended March 31, 2024).

2.20	Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the 
extent not provided for)
Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present 
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
with sufficient reliability.

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company, not 
acknowledged as debts (1)

 25,884  24,999 

Commitments

Estimated amount of unexecuted 
capital contracts and not provided 
for (net of advances and deposits)
(2)

(net of advances and deposits)  2,079  87 

(1)	 As at March 31, 2025, claims against the Company not acknowledged as 
debts in respect of income tax matters amounted to ₹16,377 lakh and 
in respect of Central Excise and VAT / CST matters amounted to ₹9,507 
lakh. The claims against the Company in respect of income tax majorly 
represent demands arising on completion of assessment proceedings 
under the Income-tax Act, 1961. These claims are on account of multiple 

issues of disallowances such as disallowance of expenditure towards 
software being held as capital in nature, among others. The claims against 
the Company in respect of Central Excise and VAT / CST matters represent 
demands arising on account of treating Finacle software as excisable 
goods under the Central Excise Act, 1944 and demand of CST under Rule 
53(6)(b) of CST law. These matters are pending before various appellate 
authorities and the Management, including its tax advisors expect that 
its position will likely be upheld on ultimate resolution and will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of 
operations. 

The amount paid to statutory authorities against the above tax claims 
amounted to ₹26,565 lakh.

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have 
arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s Management 
does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately 
concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the 
Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

(2)	 Capital contracts primarily comprises commitments for facilities and 
computer equipment.

Legal proceedings
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which 
have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s 
Management reasonably expects that these legal actions, when 
ultimately concluded and determined, will not have a material 
and adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or 
financial condition.
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2.21	Related party transactions
List of related parties:

Name of holding company
Country Holding as at March 31, 

2025 2024

Infosys Limited India 100% 100%

Name of fellow subsidiaries Country

Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China)(1) China

Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico)(1) Mexico

Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB (Infosys Sweden)(1) Sweden

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai)(1) China

EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve)(1) India

Infosys Austria GmbH(1) Austria

Skava Systems Private Limited (Skava Systems)(1)(35) India

Infosys Chile SpA(1) Chile

Infosys Arabia Limited(2)(20) Saudi Arabia

Infosys Consulting Ltda.(1) Brazil

Infosys Luxembourg S.a.r.l(1) Luxembourg

Infosys Americas Inc. (Infosys Americas)(1)(23) US

Infosys Consulting S.R.L.(2) Argentina

Infosys Romania S.r.l. (formerly Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (Romania))(1) Romania

Infosys Limited Bulgaria EOOD(1) Bulgaria

Infosys Turkey Bilgi Teknolojileri Limited Sirketi(1) Turkey

Infosys Germany Holding Gmbh(1) Germany

Infosys Automotive and Mobility GmbH & Co. KG(1) Germany

Infosys Green Forum(1) India

Infosys Business Solutions LLC(1) Qatar

WongDoody Inc. (1)(37) US

IDUNN Information Technology Private Limited (formerly Danske IT and Support Services India Private Limited 
(“Danske IT”)) (1)(25)

India

Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infosys Public Services)(1) US

Infosys Public Services Canada Inc. (11) Canada

Infosys BPM Limited(1) India

Infosys BPM UK Limited(3) UK

Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o.(3) Czech Republic

Infosys Poland Sp z.o.o(3) Poland

Infosys McCamish Systems LLC(3) US

Portland Group Pty Ltd(3) Australia

Infosys BPO Americas LLC.(3) US

Infosys BPM Canada Inc (3)(24)(29) Canada

Panaya Inc. (Panaya)(1) US

Panaya Ltd.(4) Israel

Panaya Germany GmbH (4) Germany

Brilliant Basics Holdings Limited (Brilliant Basics)(1)(20) UK

Brilliant Basics Limited (5)(20) UK

Infosys Consulting Holding AG (1) Switzerland

Infosys Management Consulting Pty Limited(6) Australia
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Name of fellow subsidiaries Country

Infosys Consulting AG(6) Switzerland

Infosys Consulting GmbH(6) Germany

Infosys Consulting SAS(6) France

Infy Consulting B.V.(6) The Netherlands

Infosys Consulting (Belgium) NV(6) Belgium

Infy Consulting Company Ltd(6) UK

GuideVision s.r.o.(7) Czech Republic

GuideVision Deutschland GmbH(8) Germany

GuideVision Suomi Oy(8) Finland

GuideVision Magyarország Kft(8) Hungary

GuideVision Polska Sp. z.o.o(8) Poland

GuideVision UK Ltd(8)(20) UK

Infosys Nova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova)(1) US

Outbox systems Inc. dba Simplus (US)(9)(38) US

Simplus ANZ Pty Ltd.(9) Australia

Simplus Australia Pty Ltd(10) Australia

Simplus Philippines, Inc.(9) Philippines

Kaleidoscope Animations, Inc.(9)(38) US

Kaleidoscope Prototyping LLC(17)(27) US

Blue Acorn iCi Inc (formerly Beringer Commerce Inc)(9)(38) US

Infosys Singapore Pte. Ltd. (formerly Infosys Consulting Pte. Ltd.)(1) Singapore

Infosys Financial Services GmbH. (formerly Panaya GmbH) (12) Germany

Infosys South Africa (Pty) Ltd(12) South Africa

Infosys (Malaysia) SDN. BHD. (formerly Global Enterprise International (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.)(12) Malaysia

Infosys Middle East FZ LLC (12) Dubai

Infosys Norway (12) Norway

Infosys Compaz Pte. Ltd (13) Singapore

HIPUS Co., Ltd(13) Japan

Fluido Oy (12) Finland

Fluido Sweden AB (14) Sweden

Fluido Norway A/S(14) Norway

Fluido Denmark A/S(14) Denmark

Fluido Slovakia s.r.o(14) Slovakia

Infosys Fluido UK, Ltd.(14) UK

Infosys Fluido Ireland, Ltd.(15) Ireland

Stater N.V.(13) The Netherlands

Stater Nederland B.V.(16) The Netherlands

Stater XXL B.V.(16) The Netherlands

HypoCasso B.V.(16) The Netherlands

Stater Participations B.V.(28) The Netherlands

Stater Belgium N.V./S.A.(16)(28) Belgium

Stater Gmbh(16) Germany

Infosys Germany GmbH (formerly Kristall 247. GmbH (“Kristall”))(12) Germany

Wongdoody Gmbh (formerly known as oddity GmbH) (18) Germany

WongDoody (Shanghai) Co. Limited (formerly known as oddity (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.) (19) China



Financial Statements | 65

Name of fellow subsidiaries Country

WongDoody limited (Taipei) (formerly known as oddity Limited (Taipei)) (19) Taiwan

oddity space GmbH (18)(26) Germany

oddity jungle GmbH (18)(26) Germany

oddity code GmbH (18)(26) Germany

WongDoody d.o.o (formerly known as oddity code d.o.o) (19)(26) Serbia

oddity waves GmbH (18)(26) Germany

oddity group services GmbH (18)(26) Germany

BASE life science A/S (12) Denmark

BASE life science AG (21) Switzerland

BASE life science GmbH (21) Germany

BASE life science S.A.S (21) France

BASE life science Ltd. (21) UK

BASE life science S.r.l. (21) Italy

Innovisor Inc.(21) US

BASE life science Inc.(21) US

BASE life science S.L.(21) Spain

InSemi Technology Services Private Limited (30) India

Elbrus Labs Private Limited (30)(22) India

Infosys Services (Thailand) Limited (1)(32) Thailand

Infy tech SAS (12)(31) France

in-tech Holding GmbH (33)(39) Germany

in-tech GmbH (33) Germany

Friedrich & Wagner Asia Pacific GmbH (33)(39) Germany

drivetech Fahrversuch GmbH (33) Germany

ProIT (33) Romania

in-tech Automotive Engineering de R.L. de C.V (33)(20) Mexico

Friedrich Wagner Holding Inc.(33)(20) US

in-tech Automotive Engineering SL (33) Spain

in-tech Automotive Engineering LLC (33)(36) US

in-tech Services LLC (33)(36) US

in-tech Engineering s.r.o (33) Czech Republic

in-tech Engineering GmbH (33) Austria

in-tech Engineering services S.R.L (33) Romania

in-tech Group Ltd (33) UK

In-tech Automotive Engineering Shenyang Co. Ltd (33) China

in-tech Group India Private Ltd (33) India

In-tech Automotive Engineering Bejing Co., Ltd (33) China

Blitz 24-893 SE (34) Germany

Infosys Limited SPC (1)(40) Oman

Infosys BPM Netherlands B.V. (3)(41) The Netherlands
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(1)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Limited
(2)	 Majority-owned and controlled subsidiary of Infosys Limited
(3)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys BPM Limited
(4)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.
(5)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Brilliant Basics Holding Limited
(6)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting Holding AG
(7)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infy Consulting Company Limited
(8)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of GuideVision s.r.o.
(9)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Nova Holdings LLC
(10)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Simplus ANZ Pty Ltd 
(11)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc.
(12)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Singapore Pte. Ltd. (formerly Infosys 

Consulting Pte. Ltd.)
(13)	 Majority-owned and controlled subsidiary of Infosys Singapore Pte. Ltd. 

(formerly Infosys Consulting Pte. Ltd.)
(14)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Fluido Oy
(15)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Fluido UK, Ltd.
(16)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Stater N.V
(17)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Kaleidoscope Animations, Inc. 
(18)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Germany GmbH (formerly Kristall 247. 

GmbH (“Kristall”)) 
(19)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of WongDoody Gmbh (formerly known as 

oddity GmbH)
(20)	 Under liquidation
(21)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of BASE life science A/S
(22)	 Wholly-owned subsidiary of InSemi Technology Services Private Limited
(23)	 Liquidated effective July 14, 2023
(24)	 Incorporated on August 11, 2023
(25)	 On September 1, 2023, Infosys Ltd. acquired 100% of voting interests in 

IDUNN Information Technology Private Limited (formerly Danske IT and 
Support Services India Private Limited (“Danske IT”))

(26)	 On September 29, 2023, oddity space GmbH, oddity waves GmbH, oddity 
jungle GmbH, oddity group services GmbH and oddity code GmbH 
merged into WongDoody GmbH and oddity code d.o.o, which was 
formerly a subsidiary of oddity code Gmbh, has become a subsidiary of 
WongDoody Gmbh (formerly known as oddity GmbH).

(27)	 Kaleidoscope Prototyping LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Kaleidoscope Animations, was liquidated effective November 1, 2023

(28)	 On November 24, 2023, Stater Participations B.V (wholly-owned subsidiary 
of Stater N.V) merged with Stater N.V and Stater Belgium N.V./S.A, which 
was formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of Stater Participations B.V., 
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Stater N.V.

(29)	 On March 15, 2024, Infosys BPM Canada Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Infosys BPM Limited, was dissolved.

(30)	 On May 10, 2024, Infosys Ltd. acquired 100% of voting interests in InSemi 
Technology Services Private Limited, along with its subsidiary Elbrus Labs 
Private Limited.

(31)	 Incorporated on July 03, 2024
(32)	 Incorporated on July 26, 2024
(33)	 On July 17, 2024, Infosys Germany GmbH, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of Infosys Singapore Pte. Limited, acquired 100% of voting interests in 
in-tech Holding GmbH, along with its subsidiary in-tech GmbH, along 
with its six subsidiaries in-tech Automotive Engineering SL, ProIT, in-tech 
Automotive Engineering de R.L. de C.V, drivetech Fahrversuch GmbH, 
Friedrich Wagner Holding Inc, along with its two subsidiaries (in-tech 
Automotive Engineering LLC and in-tech Services LLC) and Friedrich 
& Wagner Asia Pacific GmbH, along with its five subsidiaries in-tech 
engineering s.r.o, in-tech engineering GmbH, in-tech engineering services 
S.R.L, in-tech Group Ltd along with its subsidiary (in-tech Group India 
Private Limited) and In-tech Automotive Engineering Shenyang Co., Ltd 
along with its subsidiary (In-tech Automotive Engineering Bejing Co., Ltd). 
Subsequently, on September 01, 2024, in-tech Group India Private Limited 
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Limited.

(34)	 On October 17, 2024, Infosys Singapore Pte Ltd. acquired 100% of voting 
interests in Blitz 24-893 SE.

(35)	 Liquidated effective November 14, 2024
(36)	 Liquidated effective November 30, 2024
(37)	 WongDoody Inc, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Limited merged 

into Infosys Nova Holdings LLC effective January 1, 2025.
(38)	 Kaleidoscope Animations, Blue Acorn iCi Inc and Outbox systems Inc. dba 

Simplus (US) merged into Infosys Nova Holdings LLC effective January 1, 
2025.

(39)	 in-tech Holding GmbH and Friedrich & Wagner Asia Pacific GmbH merged 
into in-tech GmbH effective January 1, 2025.

(40)	 Incorporated on December 12, 2024
(41)	 Incorporated on March 20, 2025
(41)	 Incorporated on March 20, 2025
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List of other related party

Particulars Country Nature of relationship 

EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust India Post-employment benefit plan of EdgeVerve

EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund Trust India Post-employment benefit plan of EdgeVerve

Infosys Foundation India Trust jointly controlled by Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) 

List of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
Directors
Karmesh Vaswani, Whole-time Director

Inderpreet Sawhney, Director

Martha Geiger King, Director (last working day on March 21, 2025)

Dennis Kantilal Gada, Director

Sateesh Seetharamiah, Whole-time Director

Sajit Vijayakumar, Whole-time Director (appointed effective April 16, 2024)

Sumit Virmani, Additional Director (appointed effective September 01, 2024)

Executive officers
P. Prakash, Chief Financial Officer

Prakash Bhardwaj, Company Secretary (resigned as on March 31, 2025)

Divakar B., Company Secretary (appointed effective April 01, 2025)

The details of amounts due to or due from related parties as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows: 

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Trade receivables

Infosys Public Services  –  1 

Infosys BPM Limited  9  129 

Infosys Mexico  –  133 

Infosys Ltd  1,282  158 

Infosys Sweden  180  189 

HIPUS Co., Ltd  –  29 

 1,471  639 

Other financial assets

Infosys Ltd  –  – 

Infosys BPM Limited  1  – 

 1  – 

Unbilled revenue

Infosys Ltd  1,325  – 

Infosys BPM Limited  1,314  – 

Infosys Public Services  6  – 

 2,646  – 

Trade payables

Infosys Limited  190  0 

Infosys Middle East FZ-LLC  22  20 

Infosys South Africa (Pty) Ltd  23  9 

Infosys BPM Limited  50  50 
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Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

 285  79 

Other current financial liabilities

Infosys Limited  –  – 

Infosys BPM Limited  5  9 

 5  9 

Accrued expenses

Infosys Public Services  –  19 

Infosys BPM Limited  –  66 

Infosys Sweden  171  301 

Infosys Limited  11,360  10,101 

 11,531  10,487 

Note: Includes certain transactions with Infosys, which are pertaining to contracts pending novation upon business transfer and held 
in trust by Infosys.

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Revenue transactions

Sale of services

Infosys Limited  9,333  1,924 

Infosys Public Services  95  15 

Infosys Sweden  1,261  1,304 

Infosys Mexico  –  472 

Infosys BPM Limited  2,545  852 

HIPUS Co., Ltd  –  31 

 13,235  4,598 

Purchase of services

Infosys Limited  1,00,107  96,111 

Infosys Middle East FZ-LLC  209  218 

Infosys South Africa (Pty) Ltd  143  53 

Infy Consulting Company Limited  –  37 

Infosys BPM Limited  597  613 

 1,01,056  97,031 

Purchase of shared services including facilities and personnel

Infosys Limited  5,030  2,457 

 5,030  2,457 

Dividend paid

Infosys Limited  52,474  1,08,883 

 52,474  1,08,883 

Any other transactions

Infosys Foundation  2,335  2,108 

 2,335  2,108 

Note:	 Excludes certain transactions with Infosys, which are pertaining to contracts pending novation upon business transfer and held in trust by Infosys.
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Transaction with KMP 
The compensation to KMP comprising directors and executive officers is as follows:

(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

Salaries and other employee benefits to whole-time directors and executive officers (1)  892  910 

Commission and other benefits to non-executive / independent directors  –  – 

Total  892  910 

(1)	 Does not include post-employment benefit based on actuarial valuation as this is done for the Company as a whole. 

2.22	Corporate social responsibility
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average 
net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. A CSR Committee has 
been formed by the Company as per the Act. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting 
education and healthcare and rural development projects. The funds were primarily utiliized through the year on these activities which 
are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

 Particulars
As at March 31,

2025  2024

i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  2,325 2,098

ii) Amount of expenditure incurred  2,335 2,108

iii) Shortfall at the end of the year  –  – 

iv) Total of previous years shortfall  –  – 

v) Reason for shortfall  NA  NA 

vi) Nature of CSR activities  Refer to note below  Refer to note below 

vii) Details of related party transactions, e.g, contribution to a trust 
controlled by the Company in relation to CSR expenditure as per the 
relevant accounting standard

 2,335  2,108 

viii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering 
into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the 
year shall be shown separately

 –  – 

Note: Eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, women empowerment, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care 
and rehabilitation, disaster relief, and rural development projects.

2.23	Segment reporting
The Company’s business activity, falls within a single primary business segment, i.e. providing products, platforms and related services. 
Accordingly, disclosures as required under IND AS 108, Segment Reporting, have not been separately presented in the financial 
statements since the information is available directly from the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.24	Analytical ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator
As at March 31, Movement 

(in %)2025 2024

Current ratio Current assets Current liability  2.5  2.0 25*

Return on Equity (ROE) Net profits after taxes Average shareholder’s equity 73.1% 62.3% 10.8

Trade receivables turnover ratio Net credit revenue Average accounts receivable  20.2  19.8 1.9

Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases Average trade payables  72.6  46.6 55.7#

Net capital turnover ratio Net sales Working capital  2.9  4.0 (28.3)**

Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales 26.8% 23.4% 3.4 

Return on capital employed (ROCE) Earning before 
interest and taxes

Capital employed (1) 86.2% 96.9% (10.7)

Return on investment Gain from 
investments

Weighted average investment 7.1% 6.9% 0.2 

(1)	 Tangible net worth + Deferred tax liabilities + Lease liabilities

*	 Current ratio has increased due to increase in current assets.

#	 Trade payables turnover ratio has increased due to a drop in average trade payables.

**	 Working capital increase is higher than the increase in revenue.

2.25	Function-wise classification of Statement of Profit and Loss
(In ₹lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024

Revenue from operations  4,08,972  3,56,938 

Cost of sales  2,18,594  2,03,831 

Gross profit  1,90,378  1,53,107 

Operating expenses

Selling and marketing expenses  22,821  23,803 

General and administration expenses  22,649  21,366 

Total operating expenses  45,470  45,169 

Operating profit  1,44,908  1,07,938 

Other income, net 8,709  9,628 

Profit before interest and tax  1,53,617  1,17,566 

Profit before tax  1,53,617  1,17,566 

Tax expense

Current tax  43,928  34,545 

Deferred tax 198 (467)

Profit for the year  1,09,491  83,488 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset (124)  86 

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax (124)  86 

Total comprehensive income for the year  1,09,367  83,574 
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April 15, 2025

Dear member,

You are cordially invited to attend the 11th (eleventh) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of EdgeVerve Systems Limited  
(“the Company”) on Monday, July 21, 2025 at 1:30 p.m. IST through video conference and other audio-visual means (VC).

The Notice of the meeting containing the proposed resolutions is enclosed herewith.

Very truly yours,

sd/-
Karmesh Vaswani
Chairman

DIN: 10193181

Enclosures:

1. Notice of the 11th (eleventh)  AGM

2. Instructions to participate through VC

EdgeVerve Systems Limited
CIN : U72200KA2014PLC073660
Plot No. 44,
Electronics City Hosur Road Bengaluru 560 100, India
Tel: 91 80 3952 2222
Fax: 91 80 2852 1300
secretarial@edgeverve.com 
www.edgeverve.com
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Notice of the 11th Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 11th (eleventh) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of EdgeVerve Systems Limited  
(“the Company”) will be held on Monday, July 21, 2025 at 1:30 p.m. IST through video conference and other audio visual means (VC), to 
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

Item no. 1 – Adoption of financial statements
To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of 
the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and auditors thereon.

Item no. 2 – Declaration of dividend
To declare a final dividend of ₹8 per equity share for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Item no. 3 – Appointment of Inderpreet Sawhney as a director, liable to retire by rotation
To appoint a director in place of Inderpreet Sawhney (DIN: 07925783), who retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks reappointment.

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment, the non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation. Inderpreet 
Sawhney, who was initially appointed on September 01, 2017, and whose office is liable to retire at the ensuing AGM, will retire and being 
eligible, seeks reappointment. Based on performance evaluation, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the Board 
recommends her reappointment.

Therefore, members are requested to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Inderpreet 
Sawhney (DIN: 07925783), who retires by rotation at the AGM and being eligible, be and is hereby reappointed as a Director, liable 
to retire by rotation.

Special Business

Item no. 4 – Appointment of Sumit Virmani (DIN: 10735886) as director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of Association of 
the Company, Sumit Virmani (DIN: 10735886) who was appointed as an additional director of the Company effective September 1, 2024 
and who holds office up to the date of the AGM and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable 
to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any powers conferred herein, to any committee of 
directors, with power to further delegate to any executives / officers of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and 
also to execute such documents, writings, etc., as may be necessary in this regard.

By order of the Board of Directors 
for EdgeVerve Systems Limited

April 15, 2025 
Bengaluru

sd/-
Divakar B

Company Secretary
Membership no. A64015
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Notes

1.	 Pursuant to the General Circular number 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 and other previous circulars issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”), companies are allowed to hold AGM through VC, 
without the physical presence of members at a common venue. Hence, in compliance with the circulars, the AGM of the Company is 
being held through VC.

2.	 The explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to special 
business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed.

3.	 The AGM is being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be 
available.

4.	 Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send a certified true 
copy of the Board resolution to the Company, authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

5.	 Participation of members through VC will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per Section 103 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

6.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170, the Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 and the Register of Members and 
the Register of Debenture Holders maintained under Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the 
members at the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee from the 
date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. July 21, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an 
email to: secretarial@edgeverve.com.

7.	 In compliance with Section 107 of the Act, the Company will provide the voting through show of hands at the meeting for each of the 
resolutions.

8.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC in accordance with the Circulars, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip are not 
attached to this Notice.

Details of the VC are provided below : Click here to join the meeting through Webex

mailto:secretarial@edgeverve.com
http://Click here to join the meeting through Webex
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Explanatory Statement

Item No. 4 – Appointment of Sumit Virmani (DIN: 10735886) as a director
Mr Sumit Vermani who was appointed by the Board as an additional Director with effect from September 1, 2024, pursuant to Section 161 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 holds office up to the date of AGM. The Company has 
received a Notice under section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his candidature as a Director of the Company. Accordingly he is 
proposed to be appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has received from Sumit – 

(i)	 Consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014

(ii)	 Intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is 
not disqualified under subsection (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013

(iii)	 A notice in writing by a member proposing his candidature under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

Details of Sumit Virmani

1. Nature of expertise in specific functional areas
Global Chief Marketing Officer, Diversity, Global business, 
Leadership, Sales & marketing, Sustainability & ESG, Risk 
management

2. Age 50 years

3. Nationality Indian

4. Qualifications B.Com, MBA

5. Experience 29 years

6. Terms and conditions with details of remuneration sought to be paid Nil

7. Remuneration last drawn Not applicable

8. Date of first appointment September 1, 2024

9. Shareholding in the Company Nil

10. Relationship with other Directors and KMP of the Company Nil

11. Number of Board meetings attended during the year 3/3 board meetings

12. Other Directorship Please refer to Corporate govenance report

13. Membership / Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards Nil

The resolution seeks approval of the members for the appointment of Sumit as a non-executive director effective September 1, 2024. 
The office of Sumit will liable to retire by rotation.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives, except Sumit to whom the resolution relates, is interested financially or 
otherwise in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in the Notice for the approval of the Members.
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Brief profiles of directors recommended for appointment / re-appointment

Inderpreet is the Chief Legal Officer and Chief Compliance Officer of Infosys. In this role she leads the legal and compliance function 
for the Company. She is a strategic business partner ensuring success for Infosys in legal and regulatory matters, while spearheading its 
compliance and ethics program. Inderpreet also has additional responsibility for Privacy and Data Protection at Infosys.

Inderpreet is a seasoned professional with over 25 years of experience, including as General Counsel of a large IT services company, and 
as Managing Partner of a mid-sized law firm in Silicon Valley. She serves on the Board of Directors of NYSE listed Hillenbrand Inc, U.S. 
Chamber of Commerce (USIBC), Association of Corporate Council (ACC) and is a member of the National Advisory Council of SABANA 
(South Asian Bar Association of North America).

She was an honoree at the 2017 Transformative Leadership Awards, recognizing General Counsel who demonstrate commitment to 
advancing women in law. She is also a recipient of the Thought Leadership Award at the 2018 Global Transformative Leadership Awards 
and was featured among the top 25 Women Leaders in IT Services of 2020, published by The IT Services Report.

She is a frequent speaker at global conferences.

Inderpreet has a BA (Hons.) and LL.B. degree from Delhi University and an LL.M. from Queen’s University, Kingston, Canada.

Inderpreet sawhney 

Sumit Virmani

Sumit Virmani is the Global Chief Marketing Officer at Infosys.

For over 25 years, Sumit has shaped brand experiences and narratives across industries and geographies. He has played a key role 
in positioning Infosys among the world’s Top 100 brands and transforming it into the fastest-growing IT services brand globally. He 
champions the role of brand purpose, brand promise and brand performance as the foundational pillars that drive both short-term 
growth and long-term market share gains.

Sumit is also a Trustee of the Infosys Foundation. Forbes has ranked Sumit among the top 50 most influential chief marketing 
officers globally for two consecutive years, most recently in 2024. CNBC Storyboard 18 also recognised him as a global 
marketing visionary in 2024.
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Safe Harbor
This Annual Report contains ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, 
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking 
statements generally relate to future events or our future financial or operating performance and are based on our current expectations, 
assumptions, estimates and projections about the Company, our industry, economic conditions in the markets in which we operate, 
and certain other matters. Generally, these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology 
such as ‘anticipate’, ‘believe’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘intend’, ‘will’, ‘project’, ‘seek’, ‘should’ and similar expressions. Those statements 
include, among other things, risks and uncertainties regarding COVID-19 and the effects of government and other measures seeking 
to contain its spread, the discussions of our business strategy, including the localization of our workforce and investments to reskill our 
employees and expectations concerning our market position, future operations, margins, profitability, liquidity, capital resources, global 
increase in wages including India and the US, change in the Indian regulations governing wages, restrictions on immigration in the US, 
and corporate actions.

These statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause actual results or outcomes 
to differ materially from those implied by the forward-looking statements. Important factors that may cause actual results or outcomes 
to differ from those implied by the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those discussed in the “Outlook, risks 
and concerns” section in this Annual Report. In the light of these and other uncertainties, you should not conclude that the results or 
outcomes referred to in any of the forward-looking statements will be achieved. All forward-looking statements included in this Annual 
Report are based on information and estimates available to us on the date hereof, and we do not undertake any obligation to update 
these forward-looking statements unless required to do so by law

Creative concept, design, and production by Infosys Limited.

© 2025 Infosys Limited, Bengaluru, India. Infosys acknowledges the proprietary rights in the trademarks and product names of other companies mentioned 
in this report.


